rKent

County
Council

kent.gov.uk

AGENDA
Kent County Council

REGULATION COMMITTEE MEMBER PANEL

Tuesday, 5th March, 2013, at 12.30 pm Ask for: Andrew Tait
Staplehurst Village Centre, High Street, Telephone 01622 694342
Staplehurst TN12 0BJ

Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the meeting

Membership

Mr M J Harrison (Chairman), Mr R A Pascoe (Vice-Chairman), Mr| S Chittenden and
Mr H J Craske

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1. Membership and Substitutes
2. Declarations of Interest by Members for items on the agenda

3. Application to register land known as The Cricket Field at Marden as a new Village
Green (Pages 1 - 22)

4. Item 04 Application to register land known as Rammell Field at Cranbrook as a new
Village Green (Pages 23 - 60)

5. Application to register land at Bishops Field at Great Chart as a new Village Green
(Pages 61 - 76)

6. Other items that the Chairman decides are Urgent

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)




Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services
(01622) 694002

Monday, 25 February 2013



Agenda ltem 3

Application to register land known as the Cricket Field
at Marden as a new Village Green

A report by the Head of Regulatory Services to Kent County Council’s Regulation
Committee Member Panel on Tuesday 5" March 2013.

Recommendation: | recommend that a Public Inquiry be held into the case to
clarify the issues.

Local Member: Mrs. P. Stockell Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land known as the
Cricket Field at Marden as a new Town or Village Green from local resident Mr. T.
Simmons (“the applicant’). The application, made on 23 November 2011, was
allocated reference number VGAG640. A plan of the site is shown at Appendix A to
this report and a copy of the application form is attached at Appendix B.

Procedure

2. The application has been made under section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 and the
Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008.

3. Section 15(1) of the Commons Act 2006 enables any person to apply to a
Commons Registration Authority to register land as a Town or Village Green where
it can be shown that:

‘a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful sports
and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years;

4. In addition to the above, the application must meet one of the following tests:
* Use of the land has continued ‘as of right’ until at least the date of
application (section 15(2) of the Act); or
* Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended no more than two years prior to the
date of application, e.g. by way of the erection of fencing or a notice (section
15(3) of the Act).

5. As a standard procedure set out in the Regulations, the Applicant must notify the
landowner of the application and the County Council must notify every local
authority. The County Council must also publicise the application in a newspaper
circulating in the local area and place a copy of the notice on the County Council’s
website. In addition, as a matter of best practice rather than legal requirement, the
County Council also places copies of the notice on site to provide local people with
the opportunity to comment on the application. The publicity must state a period of
at least six weeks during which objections and representations can be made.

Page 1



The application site

6. The area of land subject to this application (“the application site”) consists, as the
name suggests, of a cricket field of approximately 3.7 acres (1.5 hectares) in size
situated at the junction of Stanley Road and Albion Road in the parish of Marden.
The application site excludes the pavilion and its immediate surrounds, the tennis
courts and other outbuildings on the site.

7. A plan showing the application site is attached at Appendix A.
The case

8. The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has
become a Town or Village Green by virtue of the actual use of the land by the local
inhabitants for a range of recreational activities ‘as of right’ for more than 20 years.

9. The applicant states that the land has been Marden’s cricket ground since the early
20™ century and has been in continuous use for cricket since the early 1920s. It has
subsequently also been used for hockey. The evidence submitted in support of the
application (which represents a fraction of total overall usage) shows that since
1991 the land has very much been enjoyed by the community for a range of
activities.

10.In support of the application, 30 user evidence questionnaires were submitted
detailing the recreational use of the application site, along with a statement of
justification and Land Registry documents. A summary of the user evidence
questionnaires submitted in support of the application (prepared by the applicant) is
attached at Appendix C.

Consultations
11. Consultations have been carried out as required.

12.The Marden History Group and the Marden Society (which sent individual but
identical letters) wrote in support of the application on the basis that the land has
been used as a cricket club since the early 1920s and has also provided a green
where children and adults have played and walked ‘as of right'.

13.Marden Parish Council considered the application and although the Council
believed that the land had been used by local residents ‘as of right’ (including some
members of the Parish Council), it did not have any evidence to support this.

14.The public response to the consultation was mixed: 19 local residents wrote in
support of the application and confirmed that the application site had been used for
recreational activities, whilst 11 local residents wrote in objection to the application
and stated that the land had always been private with notices to that effect.

Landowner

15. Throughout the relevant period, the application site has been owned by Mr. R. Day
and leased to the Marden Hockey and Cricket Club (“the objectors”).

Page 2



16. The Club began to occupy the application site in 1962 and has gradually expanded
and developed the facilities since that time. In 1962, there were two field gates on
Albion Road forming entrances onto the application site, one of which had a notice
stating ‘private ground’, and two stiles were later provided for the convenience of
the players and spectators. The existing clubhouse was built in 1963 and has a
notice on the exterior wall stating ‘Private Ground’; the notice has been replaced on
several occasions since that time but has always had the same wording. The
clubhouse was extended in the late 1970s, at which time the existing Stanley Road
gateway was created with the provision of a heavy metal gate. Following that, in the
early 1980s, a substantial fence (two metres high and topped with barbed wire) was
erected along the Stanley Road boundary of the application site. In 1997, the gate
at the Stanley Road entrance was replaced by a metal barrier and the stile along
the Stanley Road Boundary was removed.

17.An objection to the application has been received from Bircham Dyson Bell LLP,
solicitors acting on behalf of the landowner and the Club. The objection is made on
the following grounds:

e That the evidence of use of the application site reveals only trivial and sporadic
recreational use;

e That use of the application site has been by right and no ‘as of right’ because
many people will have been members or guests of the club and a significant
number of the recreational activities alleged to have taken place are the same
as those undertaken by the club;

e That the applicant has not sufficiently defined the relevant locality or
demonstrated that a significant number of the residents of the locality have used
the application site for recreational activities;

e That the land has been fenced and access to it regulated by stiles and gateways
which have been locked when not in use with private notices visible; and

e That there is evidence that informal recreational users were challenged.

Legal tests

18.In dealing with an application to register a new Town or Village Green the County

Council must consider the following criteria:

(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

(d) Whether use of the land ‘as of right’ by the inhabitants is continuing up until the
date of application or within two years from when use ‘as of right’ ceased?

(e) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

| shall now take each of these points and elaborate on them individually:
(a) Whether use of the land has been 'as of right'?
19.The definition of the phrase ‘as of right' has been considered by the House of

Lords. Following the judgement in the Sunningwell' case, it is considered that if a
person uses the land for a required period of time without force, secrecy or

" R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385
Page 3



permission (“nec vi, nec clam, nec precario”), and the landowner does not stop him
or advertise the fact that he has no right to be there, then rights are acquired.

20.1In this case, there is no evidence that use has taken place in secrecy or in exercise

21.

of any physical force (e.g. breaking down barriers to gain entry). The landowner
refers to various entrances, some of which have been closed or fenced off over the
years, but it is not apparent that the application site has ever been fully secured in
its entirety so as to prevent any access by the public.

The landowner’s case is that there has always been a sign on the clubhouse
indicating that the application site is a private ground and that any use of the
application site has been in defiance of this notice. However, the evidence of the
users is that they have never seen any prohibitive notices, with the exception of one
user who recalls a private notice but does not provide further details (e.g. of dates
or location etc.). It is not clear whether the notice on the clubhouse has been in
place throughout the relevant period, nor whether it would have been sufficiently
clear to come to the attention of those users who gained entry to the application site
from other access points.

22.The landowner also cites an example of a dog walker apparently being challenged,

but it is not clear what the circumstances of this incident were, where it took place
and whether the challenge related specifically to dog walking or some other
undesired behaviour.

23.There is also an issue, which is not addressed by the parties, as to whether any of

the recreational use relied upon was by virtue of an implied permission. If, for
example, members of the club were using the application site for informal
recreation, then the landowner would have no reason to challenge such use as
such use might have the outward appearance of an extension of club membership
rather than the assertion of a public right to recreate on the application site.

24 . Similarly, much of the user evidence refers to the use of the application site for

cricket. Before determining whether such use has taken place ‘as of right’, it will be
necessary to establish whether such use has been in connection with the club (in
which case it will be by virtue of an implied permission) or whether it has taken
place entirely independently of the club’s activities.

25.1t is not possible, for these reasons, to distinguish on the basis of the evidence

currently available whether use has taken place ‘as of right' or by virtue of an
implied permission. Further and more detailed examination of the evidence of use is
required to establish the precise nature of the use and whether it has, as a matter of
fact, taken place ‘as of right'.

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

26.Lawful sports and pastimes can be commonplace activities including dog walking,

children playing, picnicking and kite-flying. It is not necessary to demonstrate that
both sporting activities and pastimes have taken place since the phrase ‘lawful

Page 4



sports and pastimes’ has been interpreted by the Courts as being a single
composite group rather than two separate classes of activities?.

27.Legal principle does not require that rights of this nature be limited to certain
ancient pastimes (such as maypole dancing) or for organised sports or communal
activities to have taken place. The Courts have held that ‘dog walking and playing
with children [are], in modern life, the kind of informal recreation which may be the
main function of a village green’®.

28.In this case, the evidence suggests that the land has been used for a range of
recreational activities, including dog walking, jogging, playing with children and ball
games. The summary of the user evidence questionnaires from local residents at
Appendix C shows the full range of activities claimed to have taken place.

29.The evidence suggests that the application site has been a popular place for
children’s play and nearly all of the witnesses refer to observing recreational
activities taking place on the application site on a regular basis.

30.However, the issue discussed above in relation to the exercise of distinguishing
between formal and informal cricket use applies equally to this test. Furthermore, it
is not clear whether tennis activities referred to in the user evidence relate to the
application site itself of the tennis courts adjacent to it. As such, the evidence
requires further examination to determine whether the activities cited constitute
qualifying use for the purposes of Village Green registration.

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

31.The right to use a Town or Village Green is restricted to the inhabitants of a locality
or of a neighbourhood within a locality and it is therefore important to be able to
define this area with a degree of accuracy so that the group of people to whom the
recreational rights are attached can be identified.

32.The definition of locality for the purposes of a village green application has been the
subject of much debate in the courts and there is still no definite rule to be applied.
In the Cheltenham Builders* case, it was considered that ‘...at the very least,
Parliament required the users of the land to be the inhabitants of somewhere that
could sensibly be described as a locality... there has to be, in my judgement, a
sufficiently cohesive entity which is capable of definition’. The judge later went on to
suggest that this might mean that locality should normally constitute ‘some legally
recognised administrative division of the county’.

33.0n the subject of neighbourhood, the Courts have held that ‘it is common ground
that a neighbourhood need not be a recognised administrative unit. A housing
estate might well be described in ordinary language as a neighbourhood... The
Registration Authority has to be satisfied that the area alleged to be a

2 R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385
* R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed [1995] 70 P&CR 487 at 508 and approved by Lord Hoffman
in R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER
385

‘R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at page 90

Page 5



neighbourhood has a sufficient degree of cohesiveness; otherwise the word
“neighbourhood” would be stripped of any real meaning’”.

34.1n this case, at part 6 of the application form, the applicant describes the locality as
being ‘within the boundaries of Stanley Road TN12 9EL, Albion Road TN12 9EB’.

35.0ne of the objections raised by the landowner is that this does not constitute a
qualifying locality or neighbourhood for the purposes of Village Green registration. It
is correct that the description given by the applicant does not constitute a legally
recognised administrative unit but, despite the applicant not having fully grasped
the legal concept of locality in relation to Village Green registration, that is not to
say that there does not exist a qualifying locality or neighbourhood within a locality.

36.A parish is a legally recognised administrative unit that would constitute a qualifying
locality and, as such, there is no reason why the parish of Marden would not suffice
for this purpose.

“a significant number”

37.The word “significant” in this context does not mean considerable or substantial: ‘a
neighbourhood may have a very limited population and a significant number of the
inhabitants of such a neighbourhood might not be so great as to properly be
described as a considerable or a substantial number... what matters is that the
number of people using the land in question has to be sufficient to indicate that the
land is in general use by the community for informal recreation rather than
occasional use by individuals as trespassers’®. Thus, what is a ‘significant number’
will depend upon the local environment and will vary in each case depending upon
the location of the application site.

38.Although the landowner’s position is that any informal recreational use of the
application site has taken place on a trivial or sporadic basis, the user evidence
submitted in support of the application, on the face of it, indicates that the
application site has been in regular use by the community. Many of the users refer
to using the application site on a daily or weekly basis, and nearly all refer to
observing use of the application site by others for the purposes of informal
recreation on a regular basis.

39.There is a need, as is noted above, to distinguish between use that is related to the
club and use that is entirely independent of it. Until that exercise is undertaken, and
irrelevant use discounted, it is difficult to conclude with any degree of certainty
whether the application site has been used by a significant number of the residents
of the locality.

(d) Whether use of the land by the inhabitants is continuing up until the date of
application or within two years from when use ‘as of right’ ceased?

40.The Commons Act 2006 requires use of the land to have taken place ‘as of right’
either up until the date of application or, if such use has ceased prior to the making

°R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at page 92
°R (Alfred McAlpine Homes Ltd.) v Staffordshire County Council [2002] EWHC 76 at paragraph 71

Page 6



of the application, that the application be made within two years of recreational use
ceasing to be ‘as of right’.

41.In this case, aside from the issue of whether notices have been in place on the
clubhouse, there is no evidence of any recent overt challenge to the use of the
application site for the purposes of lawful sports and pastimes by the local
community. Therefore, it can be concluded that the use of the application site has
continued up to, and in this case beyond, the date of the application.

(e) Whether use has taken place over a period of twenty years or more?

42.In order to qualify for registration, it must be shown that the land in question has
been used for a full period of twenty years. In this case, use of the application site
‘as of right’ is continuing and, as such, the relevant twenty-year period (“the material
period”) is calculated retrospectively from the date of the application, i.e. 1991 to
2011.

43.The user evidence summarised at Appendix C suggests that there has been use of
the application site in excess of the last twenty years.

Conclusion

44 Although the relevant Regulations’ provide a framework for the initial stages of
processing the application (e.g. advertising the application, dealing with objections
etc), they provide little guidance with regard to the procedure that a Commons
Registration Authority should follow in considering and determining the application.
In recent times it has become relatively commonplace, in cases which are
particularly emotive or where the application turns on disputed issues of fact, for
Registration Authorities to conduct a Public Inquiry. This involves appointing an
independent Inspector to hear the relevant evidence and report his/her findings
back to the Registration Authority.

45.Such an approach has received positive approval by the Courts, most notably in the
Whitmey® case in which Waller LJ said this: ‘the registration authority has to
consider both the interests of the landowner and the possible interest of the local
inhabitants. That means that there should not be any presumption in favour of
registration or any presumption against registration. It will mean that, in any case
where there is a serious dispute, a registration authority will almost invariably need
to appoint an independent expert to hold a public inquiry, and find the requisite
facts, in order to obtain the proper advice before registration’.

46.1t is important to remember, as was famously quoted by the Judge in another High
Court case®, that ‘it is no trivial matter for a landowner to have land, whether in
public or private ownership, registered as a town green... [the relevant legal tests]
must be ‘properly and strictly proved’. This means that it is of paramount
importance for a Registration Authority to ensure that, before taking a decision, it
has all of the relevant facts available upon which to base a sound decision. It

" Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008
*R (Whitmey) v Commons Commissioners [2004] EWCA Civ 951 at paragraph 66
° R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed [1997] 1EGLR 131 at 134

Page 7



should be recalled that the only means of appeal against the Registration
Authority’s decision is by way of a Judicial Review in the High Court.

47.In this case, the evidence provided by the parties (both in support of an in objection
to the application) is insufficient to determine whether the legal tests have been
met. The applicant has made a case for registration of the land and the evidence in
support is not so lacking that the application should be rejected outright. However,
the landowner has raised various issues relating to whether use has taken place ‘as
of right’ which need to be considered in further detail. There are also issues,
discussed above, which neither party has addressed and that require clarification
before the County Council is able to take a final decision in respect of this matter.

48.As such, it is considered that the most appropriate way forward would be to hold a
Public Inquiry into this matter. This would allow withesses to give more detailed
evidence that could be subject to relevant questions from the Inspector. This would
provide a greater clarity to the user evidence than is currently available in paper
form and enable the Registration Authority to come to a more informed decision in
relation to whether or not the application site is capable of registration as a Village
Green

Recommendations

49.1 recommend that a Public Inquiry be held into the case to clarify the issues.

Accountable Officer:

Mr. Mike Overbeke — Tel: 01622 221513 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk
Case Officer:

Miss. Melanie McNeir — Tel: 01622 221511 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request at the PROW and Access Service,
Invicta House, County Hall, Maidstone. Please contact the case officer for further
details.

Background documents
APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site

APPENDIX B — Copy of application form
APPENDIX C — Summary of user evidence

Page 8




7 T APPENDIX A:
g 2 Vi, . . .
Hoy, ¥ =
y g Plan showing application site
Q N «
Z 3
- &
ey & N
z ® o
Hartiy, 3 \é? £
=8 §g V4 o
ST o g
$25 B 15 §
2$T g A %
HiGH g, voo &
REET PH & N
s .f; - 24 2_’1_
311 & o
2 N 8 %
K Gl £ P
~ Po i Y Bowling %y, q’!;, 28.7m
’E-;%, ¢ Green %
s . % 4 W g
PCs 4 o 3 @ * &
S,
Hal %, - < R Y 2
Park s & S co¥ v s
% L% > * ud
Marden ) o I o
e Y & C 3 oy B
S . - & R 2 : S
S - : ; o THIR A TR Goiog S S
3 ORGE £ 322 9 Fouse’® = <7 5 e
3 b EDIC i, i 5, 3 &2 E <
- a1 s - s by O sde’t < ‘x‘,x&"’“ 3% 3 ol We <
Rus Domus. y 3 LR %,', “oﬂ“} T’;, 2. s -
» 040 i munO'“”“se £§e o o ? 2 &0
& Monkton 3 3% namsm
A - ouse Maplesden o il ol B &= ouse
Q; & gand 3 o . dz 3 S iﬂ (:T me:s Z
§ Frouse ) Y . 2 2823 3 Fuggouse 1
y — SED I 22383 2 g% P
& = 2 g 0 e 3 %% ) >=)| Teme 13 » ®
: oo g STRTRAEES AL R PR
@ ge ™ A © Sl 3% = ¥ [} i
- > ¥ ), 05" 3% 2 & 2% B
% & £t kg3
B & 33
& R 3
ﬂ v Yt =
2 IS e @ g
312 g 3 i
Y ROUNDEL WAY R % L e
s b e Playing Field
£ o % 3
2 & Tennis
) Courts
<
3
5 %, Games Court
iz A
El -
o
co"smc
m"“\o‘\
0P 25
o he Howlands
,.s\\
l:o“f’:e 31.6m
[
15)
3
% o
wos®
path () e
“55,,,\\“\1s
Russetings Cottages
GP
3 29.0m
& g
Mow Cop A
Q‘b
o 3
&
K
o
%
%'304 A Pond
on
Pond %00 & Pond
K> S &
Sunnydale %s, RO 4*\ g
N &
e & .
Pond b 0“.@ 4 ey Pond
€ &
S Fe M
& N <
o Pond < o
8 Pond 8
< & <& =]
b Of}a & 'l,% °°3‘* <
-~ "":é" S Y s h
H A . . . . 5 -~
This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey 8n bé&{aif of the
e q g - H H - " $ -
Controllgr of Hel? Majestys folce (c) Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crowrﬁ@f;pyrlght and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence number 100019238 [2012] £ F Oakleigh
K
I
575000
N
Land subject to Village Green application
. .
W B known as the Cricket Field at Marden
! /4%?7/ Count
Scale 1:2500
.

Council




1 FORM CA9

Commons Act 2006: section 15

~Application for the registration of land
as a hew Town or Village Green

APPENDIX B:
Copy of the application form

This section is for office use only

Official stamp of the Registration Authority
indicating date of receipt:

Application number:

COMMONS ACT 2003
KENT COUNTY COUNOY

7 AL
REGISTRATION ﬁaU"ﬁ"ﬁ‘ﬁéHé"i“‘f’
23 NOV 2041

NGA 640

VG number allocated at registration
(if application is successful):

Note to applicants

Applicants are advised to read the ‘Part 1 of the Commons Act 2006 (changes to the commons registers);
Guidance to applicants in the pilot implementation areas’ and to note the foilowing:

¢ All applicants should complete parts 1-6 and 10-12.

» Applicants applying for registration under section 15(1) of the 2006 Act should, in addition, complete
parts 7 and 8. Any person can apply to register land as a green where the criteria for registration in

¢y section 15(2), (3) or (4) apply.

= Applicants applying for voluntary registration under section 15(8) should, in addition, complete part
9. Only the owner of the land can apply under section 15(8).

e There is no fee for applications under section 15,

Note 1 1. Commons Registration Authority

Insert name of Commons

Registration Authority To the: KCNY—V CM CO(JLA}(LH-h

COUATRDSDE Acezss Law)ic s
IdVieTA Houss

Cond™ Hho

Page 10




Note 2
If there is more than one
applicant, list all names. Use a
separate sheet if necessary.
State the full title of the
organisation if the applicant is a
body corporate or
" unincorporate. if you supply an
emall address in the box
provided, you may receive
communications from the
Registration Authorify or other
persons (e.g. objectors) via
email. If part 3 is not completed
all correspondence and notices
will be sent to the first named
applicant.

2. Name and address of the applicant

Name: R VoRr Q SIMMO(\'S
Full postal address

(incl. Postcode)

Telephone number
{(incl. national dialling ¢

Fax number:
{incl. national dialling code)

E-mail address:

Note 3

This part should be completed if
3 representative, e.g. a solicitor,
is instructed for the purposes of
the application. If so all
correspondence and nofices will
be sent fo the person or firm
named here. If you supply an
email address in the box
provided, you may receive
communications from the
Registration Authority or other
persons (e.g. objectors) via
email.

3. Name and address of representative, if any
Name:
Firm:

Full postal address:
{incl. Postcode)

Telephone number:
(incl. national dialling code)

Fax number:
(incl. nationat dialling code)

E-mail address:

Note 4

For further details of the
requirements of an application
refer to Scheduile 4, paragraph
8 fo the Commons Registration
(England) Regulations 2008.

4. Basis of application for registration and qualifying criteria

If you are the landowner and are seeking voluntarily to register your
land please tick this box and move to question 5. Application made
under section 15(8): J

If the application is made under section 15(1) of the Act, please tick
one of the following boxes to indicate which particular subsection and
qualifying criterion applies to the case.

Section 15(2) applies:

Section 15(3) applies:

Section 15(4) applies: O

Page 11




*Section 15(6) enabies any
period of statutory closure
where access to the fand is
denied fo be disregarded in
determining the 20 year period.

If section 15(3) or (4) applies, please indicate the date on which you
consider that use ‘as of right’ ended and why:

If section 15(6)* is being relied upon in determining the period of 20
years, indicate the period of statutory closure (if any) which needs to
be disregarded:

- Note §

This part is to identify the new
“green. The accompanying map
must be at a scale of at least
1:2,500 and shows the land by
means of distinctive colouring
within an accurately identified

boundary. State the Land
Regisiry title number where
known.

5. Description and particulars of the area of land in respect of
which application for registration is made

H.M —AD RS TRY Tvid RAn of ons u%mﬁsé

Name by which usually known;

MARDIN  CRICKET Fiaed

Location: . AST OF AvBiod QU’AD M?fgj’:l |

Loprrt OF STAILE KeAD

Common Land register unit number (only if the land is already
registered Common Land):

Please tick the box to confirm that you have attached a mag/of the
land (at a scale of at least 1:2,500):

Nofe 6

It may be possible to indicate
the locality of the green by
reference to an administrative
area, such as a parish or
electoral ward, or other area
sufficiently defined by name
(such as a village). If this Is not
possible a map should be
provided on which a locality or
neighbourhood is marked
clearly at a scale of 1:10,000.

6. Locality or neighbourhood within a locality in respect of
which the application is made

Indicate the [ocality (or neighbourhood within the locality) to which the
claimed green relates by writing the administrative area or
geogdraphical area by name below and/or by attaching a map on
which the area is clearly marked:

WA TTRE R eudpeds ofF

Srm)La‘J Retd 012 Y
ALBion ?G’f\? T2 1EB

Please tick here if a map is attached (at a scale of 1:10,000): [

Page 12




/M%ca/ A ool /,.%4{%

Zé:w ﬁ/éﬂ/?mn /

—E o K %Mw/a/%%ﬁoiw%/g/;é,,
od a‘ﬁ/ﬁ/ Ae/ %/MWqu M@,é [/ﬂ/

7z -d‘ Arer / %ﬁ /"/éf’.f'aéw waég/qﬁm‘a/,%ﬂci %ﬂ/ eaf/

ayﬁﬁcnfjﬂé‘“f/%?é‘” W,{;Ma/m)é‘;er%

A conid +5Rs QA/W //

me %22 oercar cr,/ ot :rzt-/4 /60 yem z’”«( crcer/fé/ grovnd

Ao Fair e as o gl 7 Sprifleac st g FH ki
ﬁ/c#-/»fgﬁ/um ?uvq M'am/,;wb/ o/mWW 9&&4-/

ollige Ap,é/mf s fonsFoad cadictng Hrvnoloss” PurTsy

()0? /(/a/ /ecewc ﬁu—ad//?—c/ﬂ{ g_%//ézgp,@o /‘b‘c%/ Kac%:/{

ﬂ/ﬁ/ﬁé@ Al R %/a// \?Luf/paéu; " e et

0%% ey~ 970 8/ 24 ;%/Aﬂc_ge_ cq./ Mm%agquﬂnmm

M%‘/m/%c?u/{aé/ v

T ol aa/p/c?/fm-éaimawd oo s Tk LS nea IY

e,n,ar{e/ 7r'ovuzo/ﬁ-a/‘d M sz/dén eﬂ-/ﬁfe/zg% W

/%Vd/"'M/W dﬁ-‘ﬂ%:é&/L/)%Aﬁ 07/2%4

O'VQIG{// M%a.ye_atdon M‘faéqa/%q@ar,&’ww uh-//%

C t/a-r{mq ‘Zf?dj MOWM/W 'ﬁ/ﬂa’“ e jz "—-""/L /W
C/(Ja/t/

aM Wm‘%af‘eaoda% /aza/efm%(

Cfmaj@ﬂ/f/o\?é/)yé a czr.ye ,gm/( O'bf/z%d;%qe
Z( % ﬂaﬂ/é/pe}-ﬁiod(;m/#(%t/%ﬂw/dd A ) cr:%a/

"% o je/m A/ﬁﬁf//#ﬂd%ﬂ%ﬂﬂ

/cf/emw/ d«“mqm Mﬂ//ﬁ’3€/ Mﬁéd dﬁaé// /

o rpsriesd Sl I gy Ao e choretipm i

nifei ‘o gk o H Cpioity u%/m/%ﬁ’
Hovsoirg




/'//dv'/ W/c—u// %ﬂ/éya Can AW,/ZJ/A%/

oz awm/ MM{@/ 9,\,,‘“/4«}5;35/”1 2 zé,%’ o e

Cou/a/ M@ ,amqﬂ/a,d////e%ﬂéé’?éu%c%{/

/\Faf//fgw? %‘4

P et Bone JWW/@a/ 22 et honien! Lo

o'/»zi- /ﬁ‘wéd poion % r—r//aye. Mwoo/a'g /ﬁ?t%‘-/ﬂ@/

4/ "ﬁ/ %2 e /Ww/ % Mfe,/c,wé&/

Ufr fe Mmgw/%f A %,W/ 7&,90,7‘




A

Note 7

Applicants should provide a
summary of the case for
registration here and enclose a
separafe full statement and all
other evidence including any

~ witness statements in support of

the application.

This information is not needed if
a landowner is-applying to
register the land as a green
under section 15(8).

7. Justification for application to register the land as a Town or
Village Green |

— T QupRRESS  ANY  FoTeReE
RedadE LoPrmenTT
o,».) U'J ju:\la

M\J SARWTIR A??t._.\c_ﬂ-ﬁ
p204\ LJ@OAGH_.‘J SURMITTED ON T oM
hie, DD SHow TIHIS STE TE BE
W neE A of REwT Gorle Frex
To A gerABLeHE [KecR—
EATIoN AL 1m1ELD,

Tore STATEMEI ArrAT et ED

Note 8

Use a separate sheet if
necessary. This information is
not needed if a landowner is
applying to register the land as
a green under section 15(8).

8. Name and address of every person whom the applicant
believes to be an owner, lessee, proprietor of any “relevant
charge”, tenant or occupier of any part of the land claimed to be
a town or village green

de  Yosere D
TDovrAe AR,
Mﬂ@@_—_ﬁ@l@dl
AP EHAEET]
Ko
TR 9T

T

Page 15




Note 9

List or enter in the form all such

declarations that accompany

the application. This can include

any writfen declarations sent to

the applicant (i.e. a letter}, and
afso any such declarations

" made on the form itself

9, Voluntary registration — declarations of consent from any
relevant leaseholder of, and of the proprietor of any relevant
charge over, the land -

Note 10
List all supporting consents,

10. Supporting documentation

L& r T
documents and maps ’/FLM LAND @-.EG-\‘-'t““'eJ Fieep PeAn oF e

accompanying the application. 4
Evidence of awnership of the
land must be included for
voluntarily registration
applications. There is no need
to submit copies of documents
issued by the Registration
Authority or to which it was a
party but they should stilf be
listed. Use a separate sheet if
necessary.

L1

Y

O

\ew \h

AuaB&e (<|'3:_l.CiSé
OF T A copd oF (etsTR oF Tl
MAP ofF TroPesSeEd Viewdes Gran € e
MARED 1 QCD 1: 2500
EXHBT mArRieEDd ‘A
T STATEMENT LuRPRTNE Note T
3l Ehibenc @wsg—nmhmﬁs

'”D'rﬂrrum?ja;-mﬁ*noa i SuePorer,

Note 11
List any other matters which
should be brought to the
aftention of the Registration
Authority (in particular if a
person interested in the land is
expected to challenge the
application for registration). Full
details should be given here or
on a separate sheet if
necessary.

11. Any other information relating to the application

—TRE  SPS Rrewd MARZESD IR R’L—:DJ A

wite Pe Puv wP RR QC-.)E&JEL_O?M@T‘

™ D TRHE B PP caTTen

Mﬂ/l/DSG\ VT MAADSTERE B own 6t

Cou i

Page 16

8




Note 12 12. Signature

The application must be signed

by each individual applicant, or . .

by the authorised officer of an Signature(s) of applicant

applicant which is a body
corporate or unincorporate,

Date: ya/-vw_ 24 _Pdss

s

REMINDER TO APPLICANT

You are responsible for telling the truth in presenting the application and accompanying evidence.
You may commit a criminal offence if you deliberately provide misleading or untrue evidence and if
you do so you may be prosecuted. You are advised to keep a copy of the application and all
associated documentation.

Please send your completed application form to:

The Commons Registration Team
Kent County Council

Countryside Access Service
Invicta House

County Hall

Maidstone

Kent ME14 1XX

Data Protection Act 1998

The application and any representations made cannot be freated as confidential. To determine the
application it will be necessary for the Commons Registration Authority to disclose information
received from you to others, which may include other local authorities, Government Departments,
public bodies, other organisations and members of the public.

A copy of this form and any accompanying documents may be disclosed upon receipt of a request

for information under the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 and the Freedom of
Information Act 2000.

Page 17




T

[ R T

"ﬂ )

ONSZIT - STEDE [PUOL "&FHOTODN T DHWND AU TRADIN YN [1V 1107 WR1AAD 1ot Laung wusupg

I 9[20g

A

0052

SPURMOH oY |

s vV IR I B v B I v ]

T P £
SCEOD oD
P il (- eI ) el
O > o CoODD D [=]
o oo e COOOD G0 D G
] [ G =] [=BR = PR I R Pl
o DD (=l =] (=] (== e I - [ ]
toon oD cepoDOBD O D
[EI = ) oD =) (=] (== P I ) (=1 .
cobo LOCDEECELDEBDE b O o)
[=N - ) (=] DD o CoDG D EEN FIE Y
PArES CODODECBDOOODE0 DG
CEPEODPCEOOBCREDOD 000D ooax
(=2 R e = = e ] EeI ) =l DD Ok DDD
DL OO DD 5 -} [»] [=RE =R I I c DD
DO D G EER I I =N IR P Pl oD o
PECEBOLODEDBRODLDCEDE0 DO D ]
ERPPERECOOOCDEDLODDDOD 0O 0 O
L R S N S N O P N S S R
OO CD DD [ i DD OD Do o
L R R R R N R L 2
CRPODEDDOCODORNDOODDDOOD0 DD b Y 3
DO ERDRC oo LoD D [EIN IR =R e n
R e o P A e e S N R N S &
[F3N -EEE I C R - SR o> (=] oD D ODDOE G DY
cecoGoD D L=l (=] oD DbD Do GDD
moon;ﬁ}d/OD L R A A N
Fo iz o o D L Do I ER T I IR =3 CI I I ST b b T e 3

Page 18




Summary of user

APPENDIX C
evidence

‘siseq Ajiep e uo siayjo Aq asn paaIasqQ ‘pPeoy uoiqly asaud ¥3adval
uo ajeb ybnouyy 10 aouesyus ajeb ulew Aq ssa00y [|EQI00} ‘SIUUB] ‘}19)ouD) ADI@dM | — 9661 | '@ 'SJIIN pue I
"'SU0ISB220 AuBw UO Aeid 0] alayy uaipjiyopuelb Juasaud
BuiAe|d ualp|iyo paalasqQ ‘9|is 10 ayeb ybnoliy) ssa00y )} MOU ‘p|Iyo e se aiay} palke|d pale}S ION | — ¥S61 INVT N
Jusesaud
‘peoy Asjuels uo ayeb ybnouy) ssedoy pajels IoN | Ajeuoisedd | — 5002 HONI4 'd
jussald NOLAVY1O
‘peoy Asjue]S 10 peoy UoIq|y BIA SS800Y 19010 Buiyoyem ‘Bunyiepn ADIeopA | — 9661 ‘N SIN
‘peoy
Asjuelg Buoje Buluuns sdew AeAIng 8ouBUPIO UO
umoys si yjedjoo} v ‘suods pue Bunyjjem 1o} siseq Ajiep juesald NOLAV1D
B U0 sJay}o Ag asn panlasqQ "peoy Asjuels BIA SS800y suods Buiyolem ‘Bujiepy | Ajjeuoisedd | — 9661 g IN
'so1uold pue sispunod ‘Bulhy Juesald
aly Joj s1ayio Ag asn panlasqQ "a1eb gnjo eIA SS800Y 190110 ‘||eqio04 ADIeopN | — €002 SSVYO 'y N
"SaIlIAIIO. JO abuel e Jo siseq
Ajiep e uo siayjo Aq asn pantasqQ -buiddiy A} Buiuueq Buibbol “1ex)ou0 ‘Aexooy Buiyoiem wesaid | SYIHLNYYYD
pue| ay} uo ubis e meg 'a)eb I0 9|IIS BIA SS8I0Y pue Buife|d ‘Buiutesybunjiem boQq Aleg | — 0961 ‘| "SIN pue I\
‘siseq Apjeam e uo soluoid pue Aejd mous [|eqio0} Juesald SY3IHOLNG
10} sJ8Y10 Aq asn sanlasqQ ‘Aemajeb ein ssa00y soweb |jeq ‘Bunjiepn | Ajjeuoisedd | — 2661 =3
‘siseq Apjaam e uo Bupjjem Bop pue 18010 || eqio0} 10} asaud SY3HOLNY
sJayjo Aq asn paniasqQ ‘sAemajeb pue a)1Js BIA SS800Y spyodg | Ajjeuoisedd) | — 8561 ‘d "IN
‘Buipho/buiAeld
ualp|iyd pue suods snouea 10} siseq Ajiep e uo siayjo
Aq asn paatasqQ ‘(pseiels ajep ou) asnoygno uo ubis esaud N3Iamosg
221eald, meg “peoy Asjueis uo sajeb ybnoly) sseooy Buibbol ‘Bunjiepn ADIeopA | — 0102 ‘NI
‘siseq Ajiep Juasaud
B U0 ualp|iyd Agq ash panlasqQ ‘Aemaieb eIA ss00y Bunyjem 6oQ Alegq | — /661 N3IaMo9g 'S
‘siseq Ajlep e uo s1ayjo Aq asn panlasqQO Bunyjjiem juasald NYNQaYVvO9g
‘o1eb opis ybnouyi Jo uoljined Jo apis Aq sS800y Bop “1oxou0 Buiyojem ‘Buisiieioos ADIPOopA | —0L0Z | 'd SN pue N
‘'SafjiAnoe
[euonjealdal Jo abuel e 1o} siseq Ajiep e uo siayjo
AQ @sn paAIasgQ "SHNOJ SIUUd) 0} }xau d|i}s/sayeb
pue peoy Asjuels ul 3|1is JoAo os|e Ajjusodal aiow | Bunpjjem Bop ‘siuus) 19)01I0 ‘|[eqloo} uasaud ayig
‘(pIIyo e se) peoy uolqpy uo saieb ybnouy) ssa0oy | ‘saweb s,ualp|iyo ‘piyo e se buife|d Anep AisoN | — €6l | 'd “SIN pue "N
‘Buljoho pue sojuoid ‘saweb |jeq ‘BuiAly ayy ‘Buiuuni
‘Burjiem Bop Buipnoul saiAloe 1oy siseq Ajiep e yoam Jad | juesald L1L3INN3g
uo sJayjo Agq asn panlesqQ "sa1eb uiew oy} BIA SS200y Bunjiem ‘Buiuuna ‘Bunjiem Bog sewngioz | —2002 o SN
asnjo | asnjo
sjusWwWwon asn jo adA} Kouanbal4 | polad awepN

Page 19



B UO SJay}o Aq asn paalasqQ oi1eb ulew eiA SS800y Bunjjem ‘uonealdal |elauan) A9 | — 2002 ag3am ‘D IN
‘Aayooy
pue 1930110 ‘Buryjiem Bop 1o} siseq Ajiep e uo siayjo
Agq @sn paAIasqQ "UOSEaS }9X3210 JO apIsino Juanbaly juasaud
$S9| 8s "uoljiAed 1839110 0} }xau a)eb eIA SS820Y [1EQIO0} PUE 180D AlyuoN | — /861 3341 'V IN
uonexejal pue
Aejd mous ‘saweb s uaipjiyo ‘soluoid
‘siseq Ajiep e uo siayjo Aq ‘uoljeAIaSqo alnjeu ‘Buisieloos asaud
SN paAIasqQ "SHNOD SIUUS} JO gN[O 180D BIA SS820Y ‘193012 ‘||eqioo} ‘Burjiem ‘siuua | AMdM | — 1002 | HLAWNS 'S 'S\
Ajleuoisedoo
"siseq Ajlep e U0 S18y}o Aq ash paAIasqQ "Jeq Jallieq Aejd mous MOU ‘966 | Juasaid SNOWWIS
9|01YdA Japun Jo 3|1js ‘@ous) ul Buiuado ein ssa00y | ‘BuljoAo 19)0110 ‘||Bg100) ‘Siapunoy un ApeapA | — 6161 LN
193019 pue Bupjiem Bop ‘||eqioo} 1o} siseq Ajiep juasald
B UO SJay)o AQ asn paalasqQ 91eb gno eIA ssa00y Aejd mous ‘siepunol ‘[|eqioo ADIeopA | — 2261 | dJYVHS IN SN
‘uolealdal
|esauab ‘BuiAe|d uaipjiyo ‘Bunjjem ‘Buluunl ‘suods
Buipnjoul ‘saniAioe Jjo abuel e 10} [1e) Jnoyum siseq Ajiep uonexejal juasaud T13ANvH
B UO SJay)o Aq asn paalasqQ a1eb ybnouy) sseooy ‘Buiyorem ainjeu ‘Buiyorem plig AlQIuop | — <00z | /NOSLYIFOY
"'sayolew
‘siseq Ajiep e uo Bupjiem 6op pue ||eqjoo} Jo} S18ylo Aaxooy Buiyoyem ‘suonouny 1oy juasaud 7113SsSNy
Aq asn panIasqQ ‘oshoygn|o Je 82UeIUS BIA SS800Y asnoygn|o Jo ash ‘sayojew 180U | Ajjeuoisedd | — 0661 'S "SIN
"qnjo 18010 ¢
BIA $S900Y "dn umolb aaey ualp|iyo se asn Jabuo| oN soweb ||eq ‘soludid Apleam | —z661L | NVOIY g SIN
‘siseq juasald
Ap@am e uo siayjo Aq ash paniasqQ "9jeb eiA ssed0y [leqioo} Ajutepy pale}s JON | — 0861 | HONAVYY "9 N
}npe ue
‘siseq Ajlep e uo sJayjo Aq asn panIasqQ ‘Aayo0y pue j9)0L10 Buiyolem | se ssa| ‘plIyo ¢
‘pue| 8y} ojuo sAemajeb aaiy) JO BUO BIA sS820Y | ‘Alayole ‘Bulk)y a1y ‘||eqiooy ‘193ou) eseAlleg| -656l 3AN 'S A
"Jawwns ay} ul
Ajutew siayio Aq asn paalasqQ 'SJeaA ay) JoA0 padus)
uSaq 9ABY S|1}S SS9IIE |BIOASS "SS9Ik 10} papinoid
uaaq sey 3J1is e Jng pauleyd aie Ssajec) 1089 Jey) O}
S92130U OU ale 818y} Ing punolb ajeAld e si}1 JopISuod juesaud
uawspunolb sieak ay} Jon0 Ajjenpels) "s9|iis BIA SS820Y BuiAe|d uaupjiyo ‘Bunjiem 6oqg Aleg | —g96l | Alwel NOLM3N
ualp|iyo yum buikeld esald | YIHOVHYVIN
‘peoy uolq|y uo ajeb ybnoliy) Jo JBA0 SS820Y ‘Aoxo0y pue 183010 Buiyoiepn AMoapM | — 0861 AN
‘siseq Ajiep
e uo ‘BulAly a1 pue saweb |jeq ‘Buiuuny "joul ‘sanianoe | soluoid ‘BulAliagyoe|q ‘usipliyo Yyim
ShoLIeA 10} s1aylo Aq asn paatasqQ 'siseq Ajlep e |  Buike|d ‘Buiuuny ‘sayojew Buiyoyem
uo 8IS 8y} asn ||I1S uaJp[iyo umQ "yiedioo) pue ajiis 8y} |  ‘siuua} ‘uojuiwpeq ‘Bulpho ‘Aexooy juesaud
Buisn Ag pue seouesua/sa)eb ulew 9y} BIA SS820Y ‘BuiA)} ayy ‘Agbnu ‘1ex0u0 ‘[leqioo ApleopA | — 2861 | T1IMYE3T 'd N

Page 20



"qnjo 8y} JO Jaquiaw e Se pue|
ay} asn 0} 1ybnos uoissiwiad Bunjjem Bop pue siuua)

‘Aaxooy ‘yo)0u0 ‘Bujiem Joy siseq Ajiep e uo siayjo juasaud SIVYITIIM

A @sn panIasqQ "s@oueJUS JBY)0 pue sajeb eIn SS800y Bunjiep Ap@dM | — 1002 ‘'S CIN
suods
"S9I)IAIJOB SNOLIBA 10} SISEq |eisouab ‘sied oipels ‘Aejd mous

Ajlep e u siayjo Aq asn paatasqQ ‘(e1eb ou Ajsnoinaid) 19010 ‘||eqioo} ‘Bupjiem ‘exiq e Juasald SIAVITTIM

a1eb uado eIA SS90V "qN|O SIUUS] JO Jaquiaw SI SJIAL | @pl 0] ualp|iyd Buiyoes) pue BuljpAn ADIoopA | — 0261 d N

‘Buiuunu 1INpe ue se
"siseq Ajiep 1o Ajyeem e uo siayjo Aq ‘Bunyiem Bop ‘ualpjiyo yum Buikeid | Apjeeam ‘pjiyo G002 INVHMOIM
asn paAlasqQ "peoy uoig|y uo ajeb ulew ein ss820y ‘s1I9punoJ ‘SlIuuUsd} ‘19)0LI0 ‘[|eqi004 eseAleq| - .v6l M N
"SaIAoe Ajlwe) pue Bunjjem
Bop ‘uonealoal pue spuods |esauab 1o} siseq Ajlep Alyiuow | juasaud

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Agenda ltem 4

Application to register land known as Rammell Field
at Cranbrook as a new Town or Village Green

A report by the Head of Regulatory Services to Kent County Council’s Regulation
Committee Member Panel on Tuesday 5" March 2013.

Recommendation: | recommend that the applicant be informed that the
application to register land known as Rammell Field in the parish of Cranbrook as
a new Town or Village Green has not been accepted.

Local Member: Mr. R. Manning Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land known as Glebe
Field at Cranbrook as a new Town or Village Green from local resident Mr. J. Davis
(“the applicant”). The application, made on 24™ March 2011, was allocated the
application number VGAG34. A plan of the site is shown at Appendix A to this report
and a copy of the application form is attached at Appendix B.

Procedure

2. The application has been made under section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 and the
Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008.

3. Section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 enables any person to apply to a Commons
Registration Authority to register land as a Village Green where it can be shown that:
‘a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful sports
and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years;

4. In addition to the above, the application must meet one of the following tests:
* Use of the land has continued ‘as of right’ until at least the date of application
(section 15(2) of the Act); or
* Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended no more than two years prior to the
date of application, e.g. by way of the erection of fencing or a notice (section
15(3) of the Act); or

5. As a standard procedure set out in the 2008 Regulations, the applicant must notify
the landowner of the application and the County Council must notify every local
authority. The County Council must also publicise the application in a newspaper
circulating in the local area and place a copy of the notice on the County Council’s
website. In addition, as a matter of best practice rather than legal requirement, the
County Council also places copies of the notice on site to provide local people with
the opportunity to comment on the application. The publicity must state a period of at
least six weeks during which objections and representations can be made.

Page 23



The application site

6.

The area of land subject to this application is known locally as Rammell Field or the
War Memorial Field but, for the purposes of this report, it is referred to only as “the
application site”.

The application site consists of fenced sports field of approximately 4.2 acres (1.7
hectares) in size situated at the junction of Frythe Way and Bakers Cross in the
village of Cranbrook. The application site is shown in more detail on the plan at
Appendix A.

Formal access to the application site is via a pedestrian gate at the junction of Frythe
Way and Bakers Cross, or via a field gate situated along the Bakers Cross
boundary. Additionally, there is also evidence that the application site has been
accessed via gates from the gardens of abutting properties in Dorothy Avenue and
Frythe Close.

The case

9.

The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has become
a Town or Village Green by virtue of the actual use of the land by the local
inhabitants for a range of recreational activities ‘as of right’ for more than 20 years.

10.The applicant’'s case is that the application site has been used as an area of

11.

recreation since 1766 and was later purchased by subscription as a memorial to
those from Cranbrook School who died in the First World War. Since that date, it has
been used by the local community for a variety of sports and recreational activities.

Included in support of the application were 69 user evidence questionnaires, a letter
to the Headmistress of Cranbrook School, an extract from a 1919 issue of the school
magazine, various photographs showing events on the field (covering the period
1920 to 2010) and an extract from the Tunbridge Wells Local Plan which designates
the application site as an ‘Area of Important Open Space’. A summary of the user
evidence questionnaires submitted in support of the application is attached at
Appendix C.

12.Shortly after the application was made, and prior to the formal consultation, the

County Council also received a copy of a petition from a group of local residents
known as the ‘Save Rammell Field — The War Memorial Group’. The petition,
containing over 1000 signatures, was addressed to various organisations and
individuals, and submitted ‘in aid of our protest against the building of houses on
Rammell Field in Cranbrook, Kent'.

13.Whilst the petition demonstrates the wealth of local opposition in relation to any

development of Rammell Field (but note that the County Council is not aware of any
such proposed development), it does not add anything to the evidence of use
already submitted in support of the application and thus is of little assistance in
determining whether the legal tests set out in section 15 of the Commons Act 2006
have been met. It is important to stress that the County Council is strictly bound by
those legal tests and is not able to take into any account other factors (including any
perceived threat of development) in determining the Village Green application.

Page 24



Consultations
14.Consultations have been carried out as required.

15.Tunbridge Wells Borough Council provided the following response: ‘from the
information available to the Local Planning Authority, it is not possible for them to
confirm that a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality or of any
neighbourhood within a locality have indulged as of right in lawful sports and
pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years'.

16.The Cranbrook and Sissinghurst Parish Council wrote to confirm its support for the
application.

17.In addition, the County Council received 27 letters of support from local residents.
Landowner

18.The application site is owned by the trustees of Cranbrook School (“the landowner”)
and is registered with the Land Registry under title number K917868.

19.The landowner confirms that the field was acquired in 1922 using funds raised by an
Association known as ‘The Old Cranbrookarians Association’ to provide a memorial
for those who had attended the school and who fell in the First World War. The
Governors of Cranbrook School agreed to take the conveyance of the field and trust
was formed enabling the trustees to exercise full powers of management of the field
(amongst other things). The land has, since that time, remained under the ownership
of the trustees of Cranbrook School.

20.An objection to the application was received from Buss Murton Law LLP, acting on

behalf of the landowner. The objection has been made on the following grounds:

e That the use of the field has not been ‘as of right’ for a continuous period of 20
years prior to the date of the application;

e That use of the field by the public was with permission of the Objectors or if not
then by force; and

e That the applicant has failed to put forward or prove ‘a locality’ or ‘neighbourhood
within a locality’ in respect of which the application is made.

21.In support of the objection, the landowner has provided various copies of documents
including a letter from the former School Bursar (dated 2011), a letter from the
landowner’s planning consultant to Tunbridge Wells Borough Council (dated 1999),
letters sent to adjoining landowners (dated 1999 and 2005) as well as copies of
letter and invoices relating to the hire of the application site for various formal events
(e.g. fun days, circuses etc).

Legal tests

22.In dealing with an application to register a new Town or Village Green the County
Council must consider the following criteria:
(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?
(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

Page 25



(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

(d) Whether use of the land ‘as of right’ by the inhabitants has continued up until the
date of application or ceased no more than two years prior to the application?

(e) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

| shall now take each of these points and elaborate on them individually:
(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

23.The statutory scheme in relation to Village Green applications is based upon the
English law of prescription, whereby certain rights can be acquired on the basis of a
presumed dedication by the landowner. This presumption of dedication arises
primarily as a result of acquiescence (i.e. inaction by the landowner) and, as such,
long use by the public is merely evidence from which a dedication can be inferred.

24.In order to infer a dedication, use must have been ‘as of right’. This means that use
must have taken place without force, without secrecy and without permission (‘nec
vi, nec clam, nec precario’). In this context, force refers not only to physical force, but
to any use which is contentious or exercised under protest1: “if, then, the inhabitants’
use of the land is to give rise to the possibility of an application being made for
registration of a village green, it must have been peaceable and non-contentious”?.

25.The test for determining whether use has been contentious is to ask whether the
owner of the land has taken reasonable steps to bring to the attention of the users
his objection to the use of the land®. The law does not require the landowner to have
taken every possible step; he need only have taken reasonable steps that are
commensurate to the scale of the problem facing him*.

26.The applicant’s case is that the rights of the local residents to use the application site
had never been challenged until recently when signs appeared and the gates were
locked. Prior to this time, the application site had been openly accessed by the
community for countless decades.

27.The landowner’s case, however, is that there have been various challenges made to
the informal recreational use of the application site by local residents. These are
considered in more detail below.

Use of the land for organised events

28.There is evidence of use of the application site for a number of organised events,
including fetes, funfairs, boot fairs and circuses. Indeed, of the 69 witnesses, 23
have used the application site purely for attending formal organised events. The
holding of formal organised events raises two significant issues in this regard.

29.Firstly, use that is associated with formal events will generally be by virtue of an
implied permission. In this case, the landowner has provided evidence of formal
permission granted for events. These events include an annual family fun day, a

' Dalton v Angus (1881) 6 App Cas 740 (HL)

’R (Lewis) v Redcar and Cleveland Borough Council [2010] UKSC 11 at paragraph 92 per Lord Rodger
® Smith v Brudenell-Bruce [2002] P&CR 51

4 Taylor v Betterment Properties Ltd and Dorset County Council [2012] EWCA Civ 250

Page 26



funfair and regular weekend bookings by Cranbrook Rugby Football Club. Examples
of invoices relating to these events are attached at Appendix D.

30.The events cited are held with the landowner's permission and, hence, people

31.

entering the land to attend those events are doing so by invitation of the landowner
(i.e. as an extension of that permission). However, in order for use to be ‘as of right’,
people must be entering the land as trespassers. This is clearly not the case where
the landowner has granted specific permission for an event to take place on his land.
As such, use that is in relation to formal events is not ‘as of right’ and must be
disregarded for the purposes of the Village Green application.

Secondly, where land has been used for organised events (to the exclusion of other
informal recreational uses) this may give rise to an implied permission by the
landowner. The issue was recently considered by the Courts in the Mann® case,
which concerned an area of grassland, part of which was used ‘occasionally’ for the
holding of a beer festival and fun fair. During these times, an entrance fee was
charged to enter the affected part of the land, although public access to the
remainder was not denied.

32.The judge considered that the previous case of Beresford® as authority for the

proposition that a landowner must make it clear that the public’s use of the land is
with his permission and that may be shown by excluding the public on occasional
days; such conduct need only occur occasionall7y and perhaps even only once
during the relevant period. The Court found that® ‘the critical point was that the
owner had unequivocally exercised his right to exclude and did not have to do more
that [he] did to bring it home to the reasonable local inhabitant that this right was
being exercised and that the use by the local inhabitants was pursuant to
permission’. Thus, it was held that occasional exclusion from part of the land was
sufficient to communicate to users that their use of the whole land at other times was
with the landowner’s implied permission.

33.As is noted above, the land in this case has been used for organised events to the

exclusion of those using the application site for informal recreation. As such, the
implication is that use of the application site for the purposes of informal recreation is
by virtue of an implied licence and not ‘as of right’

Gates and notices

34.Access to the application site is via two gates (one vehicular and one pedestrian) in

the otherwise fenced boundary. There is some dispute in the evidence as to whether
these gates have been locked at any point during the relevant period (the relevant
period being 1991 to 2011).

35.The applicant’s case is that the gates had never been locked prior to 2011 and the

application site had been open for respected access by the community for countless
decades prior to that time. This appears to be supported by the user evidence
questionnaires, none of which refer to any restriction on access to the application
site.

°R (Mann) v Somerset County Council [2012] EWHC B14 (Admin)
% R v City of Sunderland ex parte Beresford [2003] UKHL 60
" at paragraph 77 per Judge Owen QC

Page 27



36.The landowner’s position, on the other hand, is that the gates have been locked
during the relevant period. In particular, the pedestrian gate has been locked during
school holidays, which would have prevented access on to the application site. This
assertion is supported by a letter (copy at Appendix E) from the former Bursar
(employed by the landowner between 1989 and 2001) who states that he made
regular checks to ensure that the gates were being secured and that the gates were
renewed and locked during this time.

37.There is also a dispute regarding notices on the application site. At the time of the
Officer’s last visit to the site, there was a notice on the pedestrian gate which read
“Private Property Cranbrook School No Dogs Allowed” and a separate notice on the
vehicular gate reading “Private Property Cranbrook School No Unauthorised Entry”.
The landowner’s case is that the gates have always had signs on them but they
have been replaced on numerous occasions and the wording of the signs has varied
over the years.

38. The photographic evidence supplied by the applicant in the form of an extract from
Google’s ‘streetview’ service (dated March 2009) confirms that an identical notice
was in place on the pedestrian gate (but not on the vehicular gate) during the latter
part of the relevant period. The image also shows what appears to be a chain on the
vehicular gate (suggesting that it was locked), although it is not possible to discern
from the image whether the pedestrian gate was also locked.

39.The measures taken by the landowner to resist recreational use of the application

site by local inhabitants are documented in a letter dated 1% November 1999 from

the landowner to Tunbridge Wells Borough Council’'s Planning Services team. A full

copy of this letter is attached at Appendix F. The letter records that:
“So far as use of the site as a recreational area on a day to day basis is
concerned the School is not aware of any regular use by the community.
The exercising of dogs has always been challenged on all the School
playing fields without exception because of the health risks. The use by local
residents, with back garden gates, of the field as a short cut to the town has
been tolerated albeit reminding them that they have no rights of access.

The School policy has been to lock all gates during the holidays between
terms and “Private Property, Cranbrook School. No unauthorised entry”
signs have been on both gates for many years. “No entry for dogs” signs are
also displayed on each gate. Perimeter fencing and hedges are routinely
repaired to restrict unauthorised access. Letters were sent to all property
owners with garden gates giving access to the field in 1988 and again in
August 1999 reminding them that they did not have any right of access”

40.Overall, the evidence suggests that attempts were made to challenge informal
recreational use of the application site during the relevant period. The 1999 letter
provides contemporaneous evidence that the gates were locked during school
holidays at that time and that notices were in place on the gates. The 2009 Google
photograph shows conclusively that there was a notice in place at the pedestrian
gate at that time and also appears to show a chain on the vehicular access gate.

Page 28



Other challenges to use

41.As mentioned in the above extract, and in addition to the other measures taken, the
landowner’s case is that use of the application site from neighbouring properties was
expressly challenged by way of letters dated 30™ July 1999 and 17™ January 2005
delivered by hand to residents whose properties abut the application site. Copies of
these letters are attached at Appendix G.

42.The 1999 letter states that neighbouring properties have no rights of access to or
passage across the application site and makes clear that “the field is private property
and | would ask for your co-operation in respecting it as such. The School solicitors
have been asked to advise on any further action that should be taken to properly
secure the field”. The 2005 letter is similar in content, but seeks removal of any
access gates in the boundary between the properties and the application site.

43.Both letters convey a clear message that the landowner was seeking to resist any
use of the application site from neighbouring properties. As such, use of the
application site by way of access via garden gates will be contentious and will not be
‘as of right’.

Conclusion on ‘as of right’

44 As stated above, the law of prescription relies upon acquiescence on behalf of the
landowner. This is not case where there has been inaction on behalf of the
landowner: steps have been taken at various points during the material period to
challenge informal recreational use. As such, there is evidence to suggest that use
of the application site has been contentious, against the landowner’s wishes, and
therefore not ‘as of right’.

45.Equally, the evidence of specific permissions granted for certain events during the
relevant period, to the exclusion of informal recreational users, indicates (in
accordance with the recent case law) that such recreational use by local residents
as did take place outside of the organised events was by virtue of an implied
permission by the landowner.

46.Given the well documented instances of permission being granted and challenges
being made to use it is not possible, despite the applicant’'s assertions to the
contrary, to conclude that use of the application site has been ‘as of right’. If
anything, the contemporaneous evidence provided by the landowner strongly
indicates that any informal recreational use has either been contentious or by virtue
of an implied permission.

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

47.Lawful sports and pastimes can be commonplace activities including dog walking,
children playing, picnicking and kite-flying. Legal principle does not require that
rights of this nature be limited to certain ancient pastimes (such as maypole dancing)
or for organised sports or communal activities to have taken place. The Courts have

Page 29



held that ‘dog walking and playing with children [are], in modern life, the kind of
informal recreation which may be the main function of a village green’®.

48.The summary of evidence of use by local residents at Appendix C shows the
activities claimed to have taken place on the application site. A humber of evidence
questionnaires (13 in total) do not refer to any actual use of the application site (i.e.
the relevant questions have been left blank on the forms) and as such that evidence
is of no assistance in determining the application.

49.Two of the witnesses refer to use of the application site as a short cut to Dorothy
Avenue. Use of the application site as a short cut would constitute a ‘rights of way
type use’ (as it would have the outward appearance of the assertion of a linear right
of way rather than a general right to recreate) and as such it would not be qualifying
use for the purposes of the Village Green application®. Dog walking would have
been in defiance of the notices erected at the access points and would, for the
reasons noted above, would not be qualifying ‘as of right’ use.

50.Discounting the evidence of use that relates only to attendance at fetes, funfairs and
other organised events (for the reasons set out above), and also the rights of way
use, dog walking use and incomplete evidence (as noted in the preceding
paragraph), 27 witnesses have used the application site for informal recreational
purposes not associated with organised events. These activities include watching
rugby, bird watching, kite flying and playing with children.

51.0f these 27 witnesses, the vast majority used the application site only on an
occasional basis. Of the 11 regular users (i.e. at least monthly), seven accessed the
application site using a garden gate to the rear of their properties. For the reasons
noted above, access to the site by this means would have been contentious given
the landowner’s requests not to do so. Such use would not be ‘as of right’ and thus
is not qualifying use for the purposes of the Village Green application.

52.0n closer examination of the evidence, therefore, it would appear that of the 69 user
evidence questionnaires submitted in support of the application, only four witnesses
used the application site in a qualifying manner on a regular basis with a further 16
witnesses using the application site in a qualifying manner on an occasional basis.

53.From this, it is possible to conclude that there has been some use of the application
site for lawful sports and pastimes during the relevant twenty year period, although
there is a question of sufficiency of use which falls to be considered in the next
section of this report.

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

54.The right to use a Town or Village Green is restricted to the inhabitants of a locality,
or of a neighbourhood within a locality, and it is therefore important to be able to
define this area with a degree of accuracy so that the group of people to whom the
recreational rights are attached can be identified.

® R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed [1995] 70 P&CR 487 at 508 and approved by Lord Hoffman
in R v. Oxfordshire County Council, ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385
’ R (Laing Homes) v Buckinghamshire County Council [2003] 3 EGLR 70

Page 30



55. The definition of locality for the purposes of a Town or Village Green application has
been the subject of much debate in the Courts. In the Cheltenham Builders'® case, it
was considered that °...at the very least, Parliament required the users of the land to
be the inhabitants of somewhere that could sensibly be described as a locality...
there has to be, in my judgement, a sufficiently cohesive entity which is capable of
definition’. The judge later went on to suggest that this might mean that locality
should normally constitute ‘some legally recognised administrative division of the
county’.

56.In this case, the applicant has specified the locality as being ‘The Hill, Cranbrook, jct
Frythe Way — The Hill, Cranbrook, parish of Cranbrook and Sissinghurst’. This
appears to be more of a description of the location of the land rather than a proper
specification of the locality on which the application is based in the context of the
legal framework.

57.Although the first part of the applicant’s description would not meet the legal tests,
the parish of Cranbrook and Sissinghurst is a legally recognised administrative unit
and thus would constitute a qualifying locality. The plan at Appendix H, showing
where the users reside, demonstrates that all of the witnesses live within this locality.

“a significant number”

58.The word “significant” in this context does not mean considerable or substantial: ‘a
neighbourhood may have a very limited population and a significant number of the
inhabitants of such a neighbourhood might not be so great as to properly be
described as a considerable or a substantial number... what matters is that the
number of people using the land in question has to be sufficient to indicate that the
land is in general use by the community for informal recreation rather than
occasional use by individuals as trespassers’'!. Thus, what constitutes a ‘significant
number’ will depend upon the local environment and will vary in each case
depending upon the location of the application site.

59.0n the face of it, user evidence questionnaires from 69 witnesses would suggest
that the application site has been used by a significant number of the residents of
the locality. However, when analysed in more detail, the evidence of use is limited
and indicates that there have only been four qualifying regular users of the
application site (in addition to the 16 occasional users).

60.In that context, it is not possible to conclude on the basis of the evidence submitted
in support of the application that the land has been in general ‘as of right’ use by the
local community for the purposes of informal recreational activities.

(d) Whether use of the land ‘as of right’ by the inhabitants has continued up until
the date of application or ceased no more than two years prior to the application?

61.The Commons Act 2006 requires use of the land to have taken place ‘as of right’
either up until the date of application or, if such use has ceased prior to the making
of the application, that the application be made within two years of recreational use
ceasing to be ‘as of right'.

' R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at 90
"R (Alfred McAlpine Homes Ltd.) v Staffordshire County Council [2002] EWHC 76 at paragraph 71

Page 31



62. The application is made on the basis of section 15(2) of the Commons Act 2006 —
i.e. that use of the application site has continued ‘as of right’ until the date of the
application.

63.However, for the reasons noted above, it would appear that there is convincing
evidence to show that use of the application site has not taken place ‘as of right’
during the relevant period. It is not clear from the evidence when use ceased to be
‘as of right’ (i.e. when gates were first locked and notices first appeared) or indeed
whether use has ever taken place ‘as of right’ on the application site.

(e) Whether use has taken place over a period of twenty years or more?

64.In order to qualify for registration, it must be shown that the land in question has
been used for a full period of twenty years. In this case, the application is made on
the basis that use ‘as of right’ did not cease prior to the making of the application in
2011 and, as such, the relevant twenty-year period (“the material period”) is
calculated retrospectively from this date, i.e. 1991 to 2011.

65. Although the application site has been used for formal community events (which
have been the subject of various consents from the landowner), it is less clear that it
has been used for informal recreation in the manner required by the legislation so as
to be capable of registration as a Village Green. Once broken down, the qualifying
evidence of informal recreational use is limited.

66. Furthermore, the use of the application site for formal events would have necessarily
caused an interruption to any informal recreational use by the local residents so that
it would not have been possible for the application site to be used continuously for
informal recreation for a full period of twenty years.

67.For these reasons, it is not possible to conclude that qualifying informal recreational
use of the application site has taken place for a period of twenty years or more.

Conclusion

68.1t is clear from both the user evidence submitted in support of the application and the
evidence provided by the landowner, that the application site has a long history of
usage for formal community events. Most, if not all, of the witnesses refer to using
the application site for this purpose. However, use which is in relation to a formal
event for which consent has been granted by the landowner will be by virtue of an
extension of that permission and will not be ‘as of right’. Furthermore, the current law
is that where such formal events have been held, use of the application site outside
of the formal events will be by virtue of an implied permission from the landowner.

69. Notwithstanding the above, there is also evidence that the landowner has taken
reasonable steps to deter use of the application site by local residents. Despite the
applicant’s assertion to the contrary, there is photographic and documentary
evidence of locked gates and prohibitive notices on the application site. There is also
evidence of challenge to those accessing the application site directly from their rear
gardens.

70.The law is very clear, as noted at paragraph 25 above, that the correct approach in
determining whether use of the application site was contentious is to consider

Page 32



71.

whether the owner of the land has taken reasonable steps to bring to the attention of
the users his objection to the use of the land. The various steps taken by the
landowner to prevent use of the application site outside of formal events
demonstrate that this is not a case where the landowner has simply sat back and
tolerated, or acquiesced in, informal recreational use of the application site by the
local community.

Moreover, when the user evidence is analysed in more detail, there is very little
actual qualifying evidence of informal recreational use of the application site during
the relevant period. The image presented by the evidence on both side is that, aside
from formal community events, the application site was not in general and regular
use by the local community for informal recreational activities.

72.For these reasons, it would appear that the required tests for the registration of the

land as a new Village Green have not been met.

Recommendation

73.1 recommend that the applicant be informed that the application to register land

known as Rammell Field at Cranbrook as a new Town or Village Green has not
been accepted.

Accountable Officer:

Mr. Mike Overbeke — Tel: 01622 221568 or Email: mike.overbeke@kent.gov.uk
Case Officer:

Miss. Melanie McNeir — Tel: 01622 221511 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request at the PROW and Access Service,
Invicta House, County Hall, Maidstone. Please contact the Case Officer for further
details.

Background documents

APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site

APPENDIX B — Copy of application form

APPENDIX C — Table summarising user evidence

APPENDIX D — Examples of consent granted for use of the application site for
organised events

APPENDIX E — Copy of letter from the former Bursar dated 22"° October 2011
APPENDIX F — Letter dated 1% November 1999 from landowner’s representative to
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council

APPENDIX G — Copies of letter sent to adjoining residents in 1999 and 2005
APPENDIX H — Plan showing area within which users reside

Page 33




578J

136000

: = APPENDIX A:
o FB " - " "
2 \ Plan showing application site
2 °
| m)
K’ path ! FB Playing
71-3;" N Field
Albert House 8
L ! 3
% Bridge S 0\0 Copthall % A A ™
Houses %, Cottages N %, Playing Field ®
o 68.6m %, % ) Ed
o S, o U
br Park «P‘\ %%, o e 0”»,;/
«\\6 R - \o“('o N 's'ob EA
o & So r%
ies \é‘\a e, Pond v
O @ % Eipeins Millfiel
Springbank Chapel Lo . skq,?maf‘S 2 HIO‘:::s Scott House
72Am o4 N
) x° o & 3 Linnets
Crusoe fena o® \\"é" o
y Cottage oo«a 720, S 5
115” o
Albion (% Eé?
Cottage s
ol ~
Hill 74g z égc §
House = S & & ° & F
S §s & & s £F =
Posts 7 LB S O § & F s o @
@ g A4 T v o s s
amut® & ° 5 g
EN ’% © 5
oO @ ‘“?96“
e o, + 0% ey
o S »? Rs CRos, Hal
‘55“’9 ‘(‘?q '&v} Rammell House
©
) 33 71.6m
G 23,59 °‘7¢ Ambulance é’ K 69.3m I
3 92 Station ® ¢ §
& < &
~ B p g (-
c\_o$ 9 & g & K @
GO e & é ¥ 5 5
e 2 S d & & g
B} & @ 7 ©
v v
22 o
o
Y
°‘\ Baker's
L\e\“ Cross
A v Pla g eld '?os. House
@c\o&
S,
K S B & £
! KX s .\"e Ao o°’§:"’3
0, RN & ary, Oe ¥
o, L d
b3 - ”eo@ Q-O& D°f:r°' 2
90, ' O
i g r Qo Dawn e, jo
. ® Bungalow
/s Grove
y 10"20 o /aqs’ Cottage
W G'ao'.
Oaklands @ "}@/d
-
° P> S,
A, K3
S N %,
wt e 4,
O = <o o %
ot Se K
2y v fe 2
s & 0%
ey, %,
i & £ P %, g ‘Se
‘5 Py o N ‘}\o Il*e
g : $ o,
y
- ; & e,,% &
# P o
£ o,
& %
< 474,
i & ) ® & 94"7/
o 7 N & '%4, Dam
% K o,
o 2 \i %0
by « é
Orchard Lodge &S °a°,
= ) "n,
& & Iy & Con %
S u K S Col%,
Y ¢ NG
3 < . & Ve
& > 7
& 2 S,
7 § 99,}
IS iy > O
&, o,
o Cote qro, ey
15 o &O,‘%
No, © o, e
f?”)ﬂ/v@ PENNYFIEL “e &/
s, % bs %,
<€ The Tile KN
H s,
7 9 ouse ‘s'e* g 79,
™ /yo o,
z - Use
4,
[=3 3 A\ K [=3
3 | This map, is based upon Ordnance Survey matenalwith the permigesion oP Ordnance Survey on behalf of the 1
2 Controller of Her Majesty's Office (c) Crown Copyright. Unauthgrise‘eb‘{;eproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to 3
. s . . Ce
* | prosecution or civil proceedings. Licencg number 100019238 [2042] ° -
o 2 0’8
578000
N
Land subject to Village Green application
W . known as Rammell Field at Cranbrook
! Countyi
Counci
Scale 1:2500




FORM CA9 APPENDIX B:
. Copy of the application form
Commons Act 2006; section 15 :

Application for the registration of land
as a new Town or Village Green

This section is for office use only

Official stamp of the Registration Authority

indicating date of receipt: Application number;
e - NCAGET
(,,0 VRACNG AT 2006

KENT GO UNTY (o OUNCIL
REGISTRATION AUTHORITY

25 MAR 2008 VG number allocated at registration
(if application is successful):

Note to applicants

Applicants are advised to read the ‘Part 1 of the Commons Act 2006 (changes to the commons registers):
Guidance to applicants in the pilot implementation areas’ and to note the following:

s All applicants should complete parts 1-6 and 10-12.

« Applicants applying for registration under section 15(1) of the 2006 Act should, in addition, complete
parts 7 and B. Any person can apply to register land as a green where the criteria for registration in
section 15(2), (3) or (4) apply.

+ Applicants applying for voluntary registration under section 15(8) should, in addition, complete part
9. Only the owner of the land can apply under section 15(8).

= There is no fee for applications under section 15.

Note 1 1. Commons Registration Authority
insert name of Commons

Regisfration Authonity Tothe: =R LR EE\dELS @ 2

K&\n’ Coumy Cou;;sc_u__

‘ Page 35




e

Note 2

If there is more than one
applicant, list all names. Use a
separale sheef if necessary.
State the full tilie of the
organisation if the applicant is a
body corporate or
unincorporate, If you supply an
emall address in the box
provided, you may receive
communications from the
Registration Authorily or other
persons (e.g. obfectors) via
amaill. If part 3 is not completfed
all correspondence and noticos
will be sent fo the first named
applicant,

2. Name and address of the applicant

Name:

Full postal address:
(incl. Postcode)

Telephone number:
(incl. national diafling code)

Fax number:
(inci. national dialling code)

E-mail address:

Notfe 3

This part should be completed if
a representative, 6.g. a solicitor,
is instructed for the purposes of
the application. If so alf
comespondence and nofices will
be sent to the person or firm
named here. If you supply an
emall address in the box
provided, you may receive
communications from the
Registration Authonty or other
persons (e.g. objectors) via
amail.

3. Name and address of representative, if any

Name:
Firm:

Full postal address:
(inct. Postcode)

Telephone number:
(inci/ national dialling code}

Fax number:
(incl. national dialling code})

E-mail address:

Note 4

For further defails of the
requirements of an applicalion
refer fo Schedule 4, paragraph
9 fo the Commons Registration
(England) Regufations 2008.

4. Basis of application for registration and qualifying criteria

If you are the landowner and are seeking voluntarily to register your
land please tick this box and move to question 5. Application made

under section 15(8):

O

if the application is made under section 15(1) of the Act, please tick
one of the following boxes to indicate which particular subsection and

qualifying criterion applies to the case.

Section 15(2) applies:
Section 15(3) applies:

Section 15(4) applies:

ST

Page 36




*Section 15(6) enables any
period of statutory closure
where access lo the land is
denied to be disregarded in
defermining the 20 year period.

if section 15(3) or (4) applies, please indicate the date on which you
consider that use ‘as of right' ended and why:

if section 15(6)* is being relied upon in determining the period of 20
years, indicate the period of statutory closure (if any) which needs to
be disregarded:

Note 5

This part is to identify the new
green. The accompanying map
must be at a scale of af least
1:2,500 and shows the land by
means of distinctive colouring
within an accurately identified
boundary. State the Land
Registry title number where
known.

5. Description and particulars of the area of land in respect of
which application for registration is made

Name by which usually known: -{QﬁMMa,L_ ewd

-~

Location: "THE Ho, CRANEROOK. . TCT FR‘/THG b\)ﬁ?
CANER oK

Common Land register unit number (only if the land is already
registered Common Land):

Please tick the box to confirm that you have attached a map of the
tand (at a scale of at least 1:2,500):

Note 6

If may be possible o indicate
the localily of the green by
reference fo an administrative
area, such as a parnish or
electoral ward, or other area
sufficiently defined by name
(such as a village). If this is not
possible a map should be
provided on which a locality or
neighbourhood is marked
clearly at a scale of 1:10,000.

6. Locality or neighbourhood within a locality in respect of
which the application is made

Indicate the locality (or neighbourhood within the locality) to which the
claimed green relates by writing the administrative area or
geographical area by name below and/or by attaching a map on
which the area is clearly marked:

e tul, Crantlook | T FRYHE whY ~Tie il
CRANRook. , TARISH oF CRANRREDC B SISSINGHURST™

Please tick here if a map is attached (at a scale of 1:10,000): O

Page 37




Note 7

Applicants should provide a
summary of the case for
registration here and enclose a
separate full statement and all
other evidence including any
witness statements in support of
the application.

This informalion is not needed if
a landowner is applying to
register the land as a green
under section 15(8).

7. Justification for application to register the land as a Town or
Village Green

Se #AS Besa USED AS An BRsA  of
Recheamad simce 176l A~D was LaTeR
ws=D furchasen 8y suBscr\Priony As A
MEMORIAL T2 "THOSE B<om CRarBRep.
Sctiol. Wy Digp IN THE GokeAT WAR.
[wuo\) Ared NAMED WAR MEMORIAL FlELD .
SINCE THAT OATE THe FAEp WAS Beey
USED foRr ML SerkTS oF RezReaTiond
A SR

MANY Houses THer RAck ot TS
Pew Hae Gwres InTo THe AewD
AND USED THESE T© Gvanl ACcesS AND
L. THovety THE FRleld .

THIUCH Nowd REMANE), Fok Some REnSon,

RRom THE CorSBrRVATION ARsa Bur 3
SML DESIENATED AS AN IMARTHUT oftn
Stace” W I DESICATIoNS EN21 a6ul?|

Note 8

Use a separate sheet if
necessary. This information is
not needed if a landowner is
applying to register the fand as
a green under section 15(8).

8. Name and address of every person whom the applicant
believes to be an owner, lessee, proprietor of any “relevant
charge”, tenant or occupier of any part of the land claimed to be

a town or village green

Page 38




Note 9

List or enter in the form alf such
declarations that accompany
the application, This can include
any wiritfen declarations sent to
the applicant (i.e. a letter), and
also any such declarations
made on the form itself.

9. Voluntary registration — declarations of consent from any
relevant leaseholder of, and of the proprietor of any relevant
charge over, the land

Note 10

List all supporting consents,
documents and maps
accompanying the application.
Evidence of ownership of the
land must be included for
voluntarily regisiration
applications. There is no need
to submit copies of documents
issued by the Registration
Authorily or to which if was a
parly but they should still be
listed. Use a separaie sheel if
necessary.

(@ “TReofNG- o ﬁé,,b(?m)

& VRwous Pﬁmos(wsdﬁﬁ))w.mf EVenTS o Fle) ol

10. Supporting documentation

O lemer m Head MErRESS
DETAIL FRop XMAS (SSUE STl MAGAZINE
Prre) 119

(2) Prom oF Colous' Beynic Reseured N FED
C 205

() MAP FRom T, et S LocAL Rpnt Stowime

FED eheep N RED A INDICATING fbuery
NS E:N'Z- & Er\\?,l (Mm..s AND @z Npnprmion
ATTCHED

200k, 2008, 2010

.

Note 11

List any other matters which
should be brought to the
atfention of the Regislration
Authonty (in particular if a
person interested in the fand is
oxpected to challenge the
application for registration). Full
details should be given here or
on a separate sheet if
fecessary.

s Aerd whS RaHAgeD, By suBcriPhiad

11. Any other information relating to the application

TS Likery ™Mem CRanRoo Saikool- Wil
CHauesae The fPucAmion As They See
T AS A BASY LAY T Renge Mo/ -@y
Seune T A Develsfere eved Thouea

1N HE MEMOoRy o6F THie B¢ AL And

TEACHER S Ltk GAVE "THE R Lfes N “THE
15T WeRLD AR,

Page 39




=

()

Note 12 12. Signature
The application must be signed
by each individual applicant, or . ; .
by the authorised officer of an Signature(s) of applicant(s): ,( LA
applicant which is a body

corporale or unincorporale.

Date: %94/; /’Z._Df(

REMINDER TO APPLICANT

You are responsible for telling the truth in presenting the application and accompanying evidence.
You may commit a criminal offence if you deliberately provide misleading or untrue evidence and if
you do so you may be prosecuted. You are advised to keep a copy of the application and all
associated documentation.

Please send your completed application form to:

The Comimons Registration Team
Kent County Council

Countryside Access Service
Invicta House

County Hall

Maidstone

Kent ME14 1XX

Data Protection Act 1998

The application and any representations made cannot be treated as confidential. To determine the
application it will be necessary for the Commons Registration Authorily to disclose information
received from you to others, which may include other local authorities, Government Depariments,
public bodies, other organisations and members of the public.

A copy of this form and any accompanying documents may be disclosed upon receipt of a request
for information under the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 and the Freedom of
Information Act 2000.

Page 40




~n

' DECLARED by the said JAMES DAVIS - f
at Tenterden in the County of Kent ' ' |
‘ Qe A A~

STATUTORY DECLARATION
verifying the evidence in an application
to register Rammell Field, The Hill, Cranbrook
as a new Town or Village Green

I, JAMES DAVIS of 5 Kirby Close, Cranbrook, Kent TN17 3DE solemnly and sincerely declare as
follows:- :

1. T am the Applicant for the registration of Rammell Field, The Hill, Cranbrook, Kent as a new
Town or Village Green pursuant to my application dated 22 March 2011.
T,

r———

2. There is now produced and shown to me marked “JD1” a copy of my application with

associated documents.

3, I confirm that the evidence contained within my application is true to the best of my

information, knowledge and belief.

And I make this declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the

Statutory Declarations Act 1835

this 22 day of March 2011

Before me,

A Solicitor/Comtmissiener for-Qaths '

Justin Nelson, Solicitor
Tenterden Kent TN30 6ES UK

Page 41




—

" This is the exhibit marked “JD1”
referred to in the statutory declaration of
James Davis

made this 22 day of March 2011

Before me

A solicitor / Gommissioner-for Oaths

Justin Nelson, Solicitor
Tenterden Kent TN30 6ES UK

Page 42




Swimmiy

Playing Field /
o

Cornwalis Ff?ﬁjsg/

" Cranbrook
Schoal

/

+  Playing Field

Playing ;
Field ‘ .

B > Palh {uin)
% : A Playing Field :

HE—
Nﬂdm!il House 7 R T /

¥e

N
Path (um) L -

o
ind X
H

~ . -
: ]

™,

Pditfields
- Housgry:

[

i e i ; “—Bakersharn
ont! . Ff
d%méag‘;%%by /

TR I
; Z‘jjz%daf,ﬁﬁﬁ%hfm

9l | [
| e

]
/

Playing Field

'.Ji(
G_a_va:blés,'i y :.:f ;
\ QL

3 4




APPENDIX C

Page 44

abe||In ay) sem }I sieak Auew 1o Ayioloq 0} sse20y ‘snoJd ‘saje4 [ pue ale | Ajjeuoiseds - Gv61 ‘NI
Slie} unj |lenuue ‘siiey J00q peol
‘saIAlSa) umo) ‘saweb BulAed ay] wolj juesaud 1L1I399vg
‘sayojew Joj s1ayjo Agq asn paAlasqQ sayojew Buiyolepn | Jiey lenuue ‘seye | ajeb piaid | Ajjeuoisead - G861 "L USIN
8 "Bbunijiem Bop SMIYHANY
m pue siie} ‘sAep uny ‘Agbnu Agbnu juasaud ‘W
=] 10} 9SN [BUOISBI20 PaAISSqQ Bunjjem BoQqg ‘slie] ‘sAep un4 ales) | Ajeuoiseadp —Q866L | "SIN pue I\
> skepijoy
5 ‘Agbnu ‘sAep uny Buunp (uoissiwliad
m ‘BuiAe|d uaip|iyo Joy} sisyjo yjm) sispunou Jlej j00q juasaud
— AqQ asn juanbal) panlasqQO 1o} pley Buikeld ‘shkep unj ‘uleq | o1eb ulepy | Ajjeuoisess —0S6L | IMAQ 'H SN
m. Juesaud SONIOD
o ‘aweb Agbnu |euoiseod0 panlasqQ SaljIAl}0. 8uNnsioT] pajels I0N | Ajjeuoiseod - 1.6l o N
£ sJie} 100q ‘sAep unj ‘qnjo AgqbnJ 1oy sJle} J00q wesald | NOSSINYVYH
S SJBY}0 AQ 8SN [BUOISEBID0 PaAIasqQ punoib Aeld ‘siiej ‘Aep ung4 | @jeb uiepy | Ajjeuoisedn - 0S61 'S "SSIN
euu ‘qn|D Agbny Aq pue Aep unj ‘buife|d uapieb uasaud NOSYVY3ad
uaJp|Iyo ‘Jiej 100q I0} 8Sh PaAIasqQ Bupjiepn | ey 1ooq ‘Aep ung | wiouy ajes) Aireq - /961 TSN
‘Aeid Juasald—
pIiyo [etausb ‘sonoeud yjob ‘Buikeld uaip|iyo |leq}o0} sJley 7661 ‘8. 1NnO12
‘Agbnu ‘punoubuiey) 1o) asn Ajlep paaIasqO ‘Buiuiely ‘Bunjiem 6oQ uny ‘sAep un4 solen Alqiuop - 8961 q N
‘Buifed
ualp|Iyod pue Bunjiem ‘sAep unj ‘sa19) anuaAy Ayjoloq 0} sAep unj pue | 91eb urew juesaud NITHO
‘S|BAIUJBD 10J BSN |BUOISBID0 PAAISSQ 106 0] ssoloe Bunjiep S9)9} ‘|eAluie) Joapig | Ajeuoisedd - 0S61 ‘N SIN
‘siseq Apjeam
B UO SJUdAd pue s$8)8) ‘spods ‘Bupjjem juasaud
Bop ‘uonealoal o) siaylo Ag asn paalesqQ uonealoal suodg | SJUSAS pue S8)o saleg) | Ajjeuoiseso -8861 | HY3I1 IN ‘SN
Apeam (aonoeud 190110
pue ||Bqjo0}) 8sn |euol}ealdal |ensed pue
(sayojew |ewuoy pue Buiyoeod) AgqbnJ 1oy sAep uny pue slie} peol
sJayjo Aq asn paniasqQ ‘(paiels ajep ou) [EQ0] Ul S8]0. Y00} ulew yo wesaid | YIJOOH T
a)jeb uo ao1j0u |00Yyog Yooiquel) usas seH | Ajwey yum sasweb jjeg pue papuany | oieb wieq | AjjeuoisedosQ —8G6L | SIN pue I
sAep
|eloads Jayjo
‘gn[o Agbnu pue jooyos ayy Aq Buipnjoul BunoA uaym pue sAep ejeb ajeb uesaud AJIINIH
‘siseq Apj@am e uo siayjo Ag asn paAlasqQ aoe|d Buliayieb e sy ‘sAep uny ‘siie4 ybnouay] | Ajjeuoisessp - 0561 ‘d "SIN
SjuaAd pasiueblio yjm pajeldoosse Jou UOI)eald8. [BULIOjUI JO) PBSN 8ABY OYM SBSSaUlIA

sjuawwo?)

SjJudaAa pasiueblio
Y}m pajeldosse jou

uoljealdal jewiou]

SUEYE|

ash jo adA]

pue| ay}
0] SS922Y

asn jo
Aouanbalg

asn
JO pouad

aweN




‘'sbop ou pajels ubig ‘saniAloe ‘BulA]} 83y ‘uswmous SUELY) ajeb uesaud NETRER
ShoLIBA 10} s18ylo Aq asn Ajiep peAlasqQ ‘Bunyjem ‘Buiuuny umo) Bulpuany uapJies Aleq - 0.6l T SIN
‘p1al 8y} uo papiwiad Jou sbop pajels
ubig ‘saiAoe [euoljealdal JO AJoLieA e AgBnu Buiyojem ajeb esaud SNOWINIL
1oy} siseq Ajiep e uo s1ayjo Aq asn paAIasqQ ‘Bunjem ‘Buiuuny Jiey Buipuapy uapJleo WNEETTN - 8661 ‘N AN
Bbuiyoiem
paig ‘Agbnu Buiyojem
"SaIlIAIOR ‘BuiA]} 8y ‘uswmous SJuaAd ajeb esaud Y¥31S37
SholIBA 10} s18ylo Aq asn Ajiep peAlasqQ ‘Bunyjem ‘Buiuuny umo) Bulpuany uapJies Aleq -v)61 ‘W AN
Bbunuied ‘sajes
100q ‘sayojew suods ‘siayem ‘Buifeld sojuoid
ualp|iyod Buipnjoul ‘siseq Ajiep e Uuo saljAloe ‘saweb s .uaip|iyo (BunoA uaym wesaid | NYIWAOOM
JO Jaquunu e 1o} s1ayjo Ag asn paalasqQ ‘sIapunoJ ‘siuus | ajeb yoeg | Ajep) Ap@apn - GS61 ‘A SN
‘pamo||e sbop ou bBunels ubis uasas soweb
seH "Agbnu ‘Buife|d pue sayiq uo uaipjiyo | Apwey ‘soluoid ‘Bunjiem uesaud HIMYvd
‘SJUBA® |enuue 4o} SIBYJ0 AQ 8sn paAIasqO ‘Agbni Buiyorepn SJUdA® |enuuy | 91eb yoeg Aleq - €002 ‘q SN
‘qnjo Agbnu
‘PIdl spods ‘punoibAeld ‘e)a) Jlewwins ajeb juesald aoooi3
10} siseq Ajiep e uo siayjo Agq asn paAlasqQ Bunjiepn uapies Ajleg - 0861 'a "SI |n
[leqioo} pue Agbnu o
Buiyoiem ‘Buiyojem Jey sojeb juesaud AdNgaxna o
'sa)IAnoe Auew 10 s1oyjo Ag asn paAlasqQ | apm Jo paig ‘Bunjiepn 1004 ‘moys boQg ulely | AjleuolseaosQ - GJ6l ‘d S uﬁm
‘Buife|d sjdoad BunoA pIIyo sa)e} ‘sAep uny juesaud EaRs
pue ualp|iyo Aq asn paAIasqo Ajjeuoisedd | e se pjal 8y} uo pakeld ‘slle} papuany sajeg) | Ajjeuoisedd - ]S61 " SIN
Juasald—
Sllejunj pue 9861 ‘0.
S9)9} ‘Wods 10} 8sn [BUOISBI20 paAlasqQ | (Jooyos 1e uaym) Agbny so19} Bulpuapy ajes) | Ajeuoises —8G6L | ¥3did © N
se)8) jussaid ATT49
‘siseq Apjoam e uo s1ayjo Aq asn paAIasqQ Bop yum Miepn pue Jiey puapy | 9yeb epig | Ajjeuoisedd - G661 d N
"JIe} J00Q pue e} |enuue 1o} pue ‘Jjob pue aonoeud jjob ‘|leqioo} | ajes 100q pue Aep asaid NVYWNGNL
[leqiooy buiAe|d uaip|iyo Agq asn paAlasqQ BuiAe|d ‘seyy BulA|4 unj [enuue ‘lie4 aleo Alyiuop - 1861 ‘ad s
"S]JUBAD (jooyos ayy Aq
abejin pue Agbnu BuiAe|d uaap|iyo Joy | pauqiyold un) Bunyjem juesaud
siseq Apjeam e uo sIayjo Aq asn paaIasqQ Bop ‘Agbnu Buiyorepn slieq ajes) | Ajeuoisedn —-900Z!| 1139 T SN
llews
Aep uny pue Jiej uny ‘Bujiem ‘Agbnu pue able| juesaud TIAVD
10} SI8Y)0 AQ 8sn paAlasqo Ajjeuoisead) Bunjiem B6oQg Aep unj ‘siie4 ‘o1eD) WNEETVY - 0002 ‘d S
O4 Y00Jquel) pue Jiej ‘snoJid
‘D JoYs se siseq Apoam e uo siayjo
Aq asn paniasqQ ‘punolb s wes} ||eqjoo;} anuaAy sjuane abea | a1eb pjal wesalid | a404A00M




slie} 40} S18Yj0 AQ 8Sn [BUOISEBOI0 PaAIaSqQ ‘Rep uny ‘aieq [ ayeb uiepy | Ajjeuoisessn — 6161 | SN pue N
pIa1} 8Y} OJuO sjeoy} [eAlused apeted o} Ajjiqe S0661 9l

ay} 0] anp a)8} Bi1q ay} Joj aunr jo Buluuibaq ul soluoid Jeaq | 91eb jews

9y} Je sieah oAl }se| dy} 1o} p|al By} Appa} pue spge6 | pue ayeb jussaud AdINNNN

pasnh aAey aaiwwod Aep uny Ajlwey ay | ul silej papuany a|gnoq | Ajjeuoisesd - 0861 d N

qnio

AgbBny pue jooyog yoouquel) Agq Buipnjoul suods jooyos ajeb juesaud SYIOA0Y

‘siseq Ajiep e uo s1ay}o Aq asn paniasqQO ‘saa) ‘slieq ayrein | Ajeuoiseadp - $002 ‘N ‘SN

Jussaud SERREIN]

0}o s9)9 ajes) | Ajeuoisesn - G661 ‘'S S\

jussaid ddVHS

‘s19yjo AQq asn panIasqo Ajjeuoisesd 0)o slie} ‘so)a4 ajes | AjeuoisesdQ - GY61L ‘'S S\

Jussaud S3IAva

0}o S9)9)} ‘slied sajen) | Ajjeuoisedd - %002 H N

(030 ‘suiejuny ‘siie) "b'a) sjusns pasiuebio

10J puej ayj pes

n Ajuo aney oym sessaujij/

S9)8) pue Silej |[enuue pue siseq Apjoam uolnealdal wesaid | JNOVINOW
e uo qnjo Agbnu pue jooyos ay} Agq pasn pue Buisijeloos SJUBAS UMO | Ajjeuoiseao - 1661 ‘a N
"SJUBAD
Ajunwwod pue ainsig| ‘(Agbnu Ajjeioadsa) SjuaAd juesaud AJIXNH t©
Hods 4o} siayjo Aq asn paalasqo Ajjuanbaly alnsia Alunwwo) ales | Ajeuoisesn - 861 'S "SI M_.u
‘saljiAljoe <
MOUS ‘||EQ100} ‘19)0LI0 ‘saljiAljoe Allunwiwod SEYE) Juesalid AJIXNH -
10} sJ8Y}0 AQ asn paalasqo Apuanbal4 uodg Aunwwo)n ales | AjeuoisesnQ - 961 ‘W I
‘BuiAe|d uaip|iyo oy suonnadwod uesaud X090 'H
Alilep pue sjuana 1o} Apj@am asn paAlasqQ Buijjegmous ‘Bunjiepr | suods ‘sAep ung ajen a|qelep —666L | SIN pue JN
"SBIIIAIJOB SNOLIBA 10} soweb mous Ajlwej pue
sJay}o Aq asn Ajiep paniasqQ ‘(palels sajep | ‘saweb Ajwe} ‘sayojew Jawwns wesaid | A3SdOD 'd
ou) juasald Apuauing ‘ajeb ||ews uo adljoN Agbna Buiyojepy | sdiejuny ‘sAep ung aleo ul Apjespn - 6861 | "SIN pue I\
Jiej uny pue Aep uny jenuue
‘uoseas Agbni Buunp sAepung uo Apejnbal SJUSAD juesaud
pasn pue "pajqiyoid sbop Bunels ubig Agbnu Buiyorepp S]UBAS [enuuy |enuue Jo4 -086L | AMd A SIN
‘sAep unj pue buibbol ‘asn Buiuunu NOSNITMOY
[euonealsoal ‘uods BuiAed ualpiyo Buipnjoul ‘sayy BulAl ‘ualppiyo llej ‘sajes Ayiuow juesaud d
‘siseq Ajiep e uo sJayjo Aq asn panlasqQO yim |leqjooy Buike|d 1009 ‘Aep un4 aleo 90IM | —000Z | "SIA pue I
sayojew Bunjiem
‘uoneausal Ajlwe) pue ‘Gurjjem Bop gn|o pue [ooyas Bop Jo} Ajiep
‘BuiAeld uaipjiyo ‘sAep uny ‘seyojew suods ‘slle} 1009 ‘slie} ‘SJUBAS 10} wesaid | NOSLVM 1
‘s9)9} 10} s1aylo Aq asn Ajiep paAlesqQ Bunjiem 6oQg ‘skep unj ‘sayo4 | ajeb ulely | Ajjeuoisesd —666L | "SIN pue JN
Buiyoiem

pJiq ‘Agbnu Buiyojem




BuiAe|d uaup|iyo pue (}job ‘Agbnu) 1iods ‘siie} sAep uny Ajiwey wesald | 371g9v.LSNOD
‘sAep unjy ‘sa)ay 10} s1ay)o Ag asn panlesqQ ‘saja) Buipuapny a)en | Ajjeuoisead - 0661 VSN
‘'s1ayjo Ag asn Apj@am paalasqQ Aepp
(0661 — G961) seweb pue 34 10} |0oyoS Aep uny pue sie} ayhi4 jussaud | HIDONINYIL
)ooiquel) je Ja)sew|ooyds se Ajilep pasn [enuue Buipuany e ajen | Ajjeuoisesd —996] | SIN pue I\
S9SNJJID pue siie}
‘skep unj ‘sa)a) | o1eb plol
"'S9SNJUIO pue slie} ‘sAep uny ‘sa)a) Se |ons Sjuand pue ajeb esalid NOSdIN3r
1o} s18y)o AQ asn |BuOISBO20 PaAIaSqQ UMO]} puaypy | uelysepad | AjjeuoiseasosQ - 1.6l d N
SnoJID
BuiAe|d ualipjiyo pue sAep pue Jiej 100q juesaud NAMOYY
uny 10} SI9YJ0 AQ 8SN |BUOISED0 PaAIasqQ ‘siiey ‘Aep ung | aeb uiepy | AjjeuoisessQ - GEBL AN
"pa1oaJa 99130u d)eAlld 8ouls SIayjo
Aqg asn pantasqo JoN “Auedoud ajeaud slle} 100q ‘sa)8) juesaud NYWYVHS
S| J1 1ey) a1eb ay) uo ao1j0u e SsI 819y | ‘punolb Jiey a1en) | Ajjeuoisead - 0861 'O "SI
‘Buiuunu pue Bupjiem
Bop Jo} pue ‘syuspnis jooyos pue gnjo Agbnu Jiey 100q asaid 1HOINM
Aq sAep 1sow s1ayjo Ag asn paAlesqQ ‘Aep uny ‘aieq | o1eb uiepy | Ajjeuoiseoas -7002 ‘IN SN
S|eAluleD juasaud 1IVX09
‘sAep unj ‘sejo4 a)en) | Ajjeuoisedd - 0.6l d'SIN [T
juasaud >
0]o sd8)o4 9leo paje)s JON — /6L | VIS TSN un.u
e}
‘siseq Apj@am e uo siayjo uny ayy buiLolus
Aq asn paniasqQ ‘papusye sjdoad 000 ‘sAep uny/sa)a) ajeb siseq
}ses| Je 0L0Z U] "unf Ul pusyeem | piay Buipuaye uedo ue | Jenbaie uo Juesalid NNVYMS
9]8) umo} ay) Buisiueblio sapiwwo) ay} uQ pue yum bBuidjay ybnouay] | Jeahk e souQ - 0861 1S
‘qn|D Agbny yooiquel) os|e pue bupjjem (payeys
Bop J0o} siseq Ajiep e uo si1ayjo Agq ash Jiejuny ‘sAep Jou sajep
paAIasSqQ ‘pue| SIY} UO SjuaAs Jiay) 0} Ajus unj ‘se1a} UMO) sso00e oly10ads) H1YON
Joy abieyo 0} 9|ge aJe SjusAs s|geleyd —S,0p ‘|eros uado | AjjeuoisedoQ slh 0z ‘a s
SANONWNIS
‘AgBnu ‘BuiAeld uaipjiyo ‘diej lej juesaud T
100q ‘sAep uny 10} s1ayjo Ag asn paAlasqQ ‘Aep uny ‘aieyjoog | a1eb uiepy | Ajjeuoisead —096L | "SIN pue N
EN
s|idnd [0oyos yooiquel) pue siiey uny ‘sa)a) UMO] ‘Sliej uny | sadueljud asaud
UMO] ‘SnaJIO J0J S18Yl0o AQ 8sh paAlasqQ ‘snaJio Bunisin a1en) | Ajjeuoiseds —0S6) | 3dOd T ‘SIN
siseq Apj@am uo Aep unj pue slie} suolouny pue sojeb uasaud
‘gniD Agbny yoouquelun Aq asn paAIasqO sile) ‘skepung | omy sy Ag | Ajjeuoisess) —096L | NNVQ ¥ N
‘Sllej j00q pue e} 100q jussaid | NYNG1IN 3




e} pue Aep esaid | NVINITOD '9
unj Joj pue gn|o Agbny Ag asn paAlasqQ palels 10N palels JoN | @1eb uiepy | Ajjeuoiseas —LGS6L | "SIN pue I
‘'sAep unj pue
sJiej uny ‘BulAy ey ‘Buluuns ‘sied |04ju0d
ajowsal ‘(910 193010 ‘|leqiooy) seweb buie|d juasaud ONIQ109
‘Buyoluold 1o} s1ayjo Aq 8sn paAIasqQO pajels 10N pojels 10N | paleis 1oN | Ajjeuoiseso -8002 o N
juasaud
Aljeuoiseado siayjo Aq 8sn paalasqo pejels JON pajels JON | psjels JON pajels JON —9/61 | HvY31 '3 'SIN
esaid | MYHSAVYL
SJaYjo AQ asn |BUOISBID0 PaAIaSqQ paiels 10N polels 10N | paiels 10N | Ajjeuoiseso - 9661 'S
pajels AITION
psaje)s JoN pajels JON | pajels JON pajels JON ION ‘IN "SIN
yussald NEEEDR)
pajels 10N paje}s JON | pajels JON pajels JON — G861 ‘1 'SSIN
jussaid | Av3LSTIAM
SJayjo AQ asn |BUOISBID0 PaAIaSqQ paels 10N palels J0N | paleis JoN | Ajjeuoisedd -G/6l o SN
jussaid | TTIMSSIHD
SJaYjo AQ 8sn |BUOISBID0 PaAIasqQ pajels 10N pajels J0N | palels JIoN pajels 10N - 0861 "9 'SN
Jussaud d31S93IM o
SJayjo AQ asn |BuUOISBID0 PaAIaSqQ palels 10N palels 10N ajen pajels 10N - 0961 ‘3 SIN M
Jussaid | ¥YIAMOO01°A [
SJaYjo AQ 9sn |BUOISBID0 PaAIaSqQ pajels 10N paje)s JON | palels JON paje]s 10N —1J6L | "SIN pue N A
Jussaud Sddv 'd
pajels 10N psajels JON 9leo pajels JON — 0961 | 'SIIN pue I
Jussaud NVINJVHO
SJayjo AQ asn |BUOISBID0 PaAIBSqQ paiels 10N palels Jo0N | palels oN | Ajjeuoisesd -¢/6l o SN
Jussaud NIHHVYM
SJayjo AQ asn |euoISBI20 PaAIasqQ pajels 10N pajels Jo0N | paleis JoN | Ajeuoisedd - G661 7N
asn Jo odA)] ajejs jou op oym SasSauiM
"'sAep unj
‘sjealules ‘aiey uny ‘ssweb Buihe|d uaipjiyo Jlej unj pue sojeb juasaud Y3IHOLVH
‘Wods Ap@am 1oy siayjo Ag asn panlesqQ S|eAIUIED UMO | urep Alles A - 0961 1IN
a)eb
‘siseq Apjoam e uo uapieb
Jiej uny pue Aep uny ‘eonoeud Jjob s .ualp|iyo Aep uny pue a)eb juasaid 71713sSsSNy
‘AgBnJ jooyos 10} s18yl0 AQ 8sh paAlasqQ Ajwey pue sieq4 | eouenug | Ajjeuoiseod -G/6l ‘A SN
so19] pue Buiuunu ‘Jjob ‘Agbnu ‘||eqj00} juesaud ¥3IdOOH
‘Bunjjem Joy siseq Ajlep B Uo asn paAIasqQO Aep ung ajeo Alyiuopy — Q061 =R
‘s1ay1o Ag asn Apjeam pue Ajiep SUENE) juasaud JAAH
panlasqQ ° pamojje sbop ou, Buneis ubig Alunwwo) | eeb epig | Ajjeuoisess) -002 0 "SI\




CRANBROOK SCH( APPENDIX D: Examples of consent

h: granted for the use of the application

el site for organised events
‘

Cranbrook, Kent, TN17 35D
Telephone: School 01580 —711800 Bursar 01580711811 Fax 01580 — 711808

CONDITIONS AND AGREEMENT FOR HIRE OF
RAMMELL FIELD

Hire Agreement betwéen
“The School”: Cranbrook School, Waterloo Road, Cranbrook, Kent TN17 3JD
And

“The Hirer”:  Mr P Mummery
: Bay Tree Coftage
The Hill
Cranbrook
Kent.
TN17 3HP

LICENCE PERIOD AND CHARGES

For the hire of Rammell Field on SUNDAY 11 JUNE 2006
From 0830 hours to 1800 hours

The fee for this hire period will be £40.00

LICENSEE'S OBLIGATIONS

a. The Licensee is responsible for the behaviour of member of the
public at all fimes.

b. To ensure that Rammeli Field is left clean and returned to its
original state.

c. To ensure that all litter and rubbish is disposed of in an
appropriate manner.

d. Any damage to be reported in writing to the Bursar's Assistant
and any cost resulting in damage caused will be paid for by the
hirer.

Page 49




waterioo Road
" Cranbrook é,/'f’n .
Kent ! !/% T

&y TN17 31D & éﬁﬁ g
Tel: 01580 711811

RANBROOK
C SCHOOL : Fax: 01580 713972
Email: Faci!ities@cranbrook.kent.sch .uk

www.cranbrookschqoi.rco.uk
VAT Reg. No 565347618

Mr. R. Swallow

Cranbrook Rugby Ciub
20 Joyce Close

Cranbrook

Kent TN17 3LZ

_m_
CRANBROOK RUGBY ﬂ_ 758 September 2009

Jaegers; rammell and Scott Fields plus a maximum of 6
sessions on Big side — as per attached Conditions of Hire.

Rugby Training and Matches — as per schedule
Saturday 2-5 P.M. and Sunday 10-12 A.M.
period: April 2009 - March 2010

Jaegers: 35 Sessions @ £21.22 £ 742.70
Scott: 20 Sessions @ £31.83 £ 636.60
rammell: 18 Sessions @ £21.22 £ 381.96 1761.26
Less 10% Discount for 10 or more Sessions - .176,13
Less 10%. Regular User Discount | -176.13
Total Due 1409.00
VAT
Total Amount payable 1409.00

please make cheques payable to cranbrook School Trust Trading

| Page 50



RANBRO OK

_ Cranbrook

HHE0O

Waterloo Road FFL

Kent
TN17 31D

Tel: 01580 711811

SCHOOTL Fax: 01580 713972
Email: Facilities@cranbrook.kent.sch.uk
www.cranbrookschool.ca.uk
VAT Reg. No 565347618
Mr P Mummery
ay Tree Cottage
“The Hill
Cranbrook
Kent TN17 3HP
Account Number Invoice Number Date
- MUMMERY 576 08" May 2009
Narrative Amount

Special Conditions of Hire.
Date: Sunday 7™ June 2009

Event: Family Fun Day

rammell Field for Fun Day & Scott Field for parking as per

Total Amount Payable | 50.42

Please make cheques payable to Cranbrook School Trust Trading

Page 51

Total Due | 43.84
VAT 6.58




-

Yo pogmant g £3D canin

- e o I
(tcpred , [t{—%ﬁmwldpw gt )

WAWWW{SOD
o be xepr w Sge Bond qren

mm%{wﬁmmw@ﬁeh
Mgm)w{/s

June 2 2004

Nicky Shaw

Shaws Leisure
43-45 Camden Road
Tunbridge Wells
Kent TN1 2QE

INVOICE
Invoice No. 245

For the use of Rammell field for a Fun Fair
from 12 July to 18 July 2004 inclusive

‘ Net £ 350,00
Vat
Gross £ 356.00

Please make cheques payable to Cranbrook School Trust Trading Account

Enquiries and cheques to:
The Bursar, Cranbrook School, Waterloo Road, Cranbrook, Kent TN17 3JD

-Page 52




APPENDIX E: Copy of letter from the
former Bursar dated 22"° October 2011

The Red House
Station Road
Charing

Kent TN27 OJA

Tel 01233 712101

Mrs C Browne

Buss Murton Law RECEIVED 3 i
31 High Street

Cranbrook

Kent TN17 3EE 22 October 2011

Dear Mrs Birowne,
CRANBROOK SCHOQOL - Your Ref: CLB/MEW/C00005/13

| am surprised that anyone can attempt to register land owned by the school as
a village green. Throughout my time at Cranbrook School the field was used
for rugby. The only explicit permission for an outsider to use the field was the
annual hiring of the field for a circus.

I remember the issue of back gates and garden encroachments being brought
to my attention. A letter was drafted, | think with the help of Buss Murton, to
make it clear that the householders had no right of access to Rammell Field for
any purposes whatsoever. | personally delivered the letter to each of the
houses backing onto Rammell Field irrespective of whether the particular
house had a back gate. The “no entry” signs on the main vehicular access
gate and the small metal gate in the corner closest to Rammell House were
renewed and both gates secured by padfock and chain.

| remember there being some objections to the schools action in particular from
those who found it easier to walk across the field as a more direct route when
going into town. At least one meeting took place on the field. For a long time |
made vegular checks that (he gales were being properiy secured. Regretably, i
am not able to remember in which year this happened but if it still exists in the
School archives any correspondence would be on the Rammell Field file.

Certainly, until my departure | continued to check that the field was being
secured and the field was maintained as a sports field for rugby.

Yours sincerely,

— (e.(,LL‘_\-

A D JOLLEY

Page 53




f - ‘ | APPENDIX F: Letter dated 1°*
¥, ' November 1999 from landowner’s
representative to Tunbridge Wells

(ALAN BES[”%@P CONSULT Borough Council

', F’lannmg Ievelopment o Landsoapo Ecology BN oy

I
{
i
E
i' . Grove Barn Grove Lane Hunton Mmdstone I(ent ME15 OSE Tel Hunton (01622) 820??5 Fax (01622) 820775

, ‘1November1999';.l“-’. .
Your Ref: . GH/4432/1"
GurRef: " ADB/es/346

4
.7

Tony Fullwood

Strategy Des:gn and Pro;ects Manager -

Plannlng Serwces :

Town Hall .7~ ‘
Tunbridge Wells ' o ' - ;
Kent TN1 1RS ~ ‘ ‘

For the attention of Gili Harris , t

Dear Gill Harris

Tunbridge Wells Borough Local Plan
Submissions by Cranbrook School

I refer to your letters of 30 July and 13 August 1999 and am now in a position
to respond to your request for further information.

Rammell Fleld

The field is commonly referred to as Rammell Field although its official.title is
The Cranbrook School War Memorial Playing Field. - The TWBC Non
Domestic Rates refer to the field as Playing Fieid, The Hill.

Rammell Field was originally conveyed to the Governors of Cranbrook School
by a Conveyance dated 31 August 1922 and is currently held as part of
Cranbrook School Trust. The Conveyance recites that the Old
Cranbrookians Association wished to perpetuate the memory of former boys
at the Grammar School who fell in the Great War and they subscribed certain
monies to purchase the field from Mr Roland Hubert Rumens. The field was
conveyed to the Governors who agreed to accept the Conveyance upon .
certain terms and conditions. 1t was not a bequest by Arthur Rammell.

The terms and ‘conditions were that the fand was to be heid on trust and was
to be known as “The Granbrook School War Memorial Playing Field” end was
to continue to be known as that unless and until the field was soid.

The Trust was ultiniately a trust for sale so that the field could be soid at such
time as the Trustees.in their absolute discretion thought fit arid they should

e O S T B R ]

Page 54




o War Memorlal Play;ng F|e|d"

K 'then use the proceeds of any such sale for or towards
another Playmg Field” which was also to be known as “The Cranbrook School

' Subsequently,
of land along the north-western srde of the ﬂeld which would be, we believe, a
sliver of land along the boundary of Rammel! Field with Frythe Way Further

enquirles are being made by the School's~ solicitor on ﬂ”l]S We believe that

- the land which was_coriveyed to Cranbrook RDC was used as part of the
Frythe Way lmprovements at the t:me and is now part of the pubhc htghway

- Turnlng to the use of the site by Iocal people there are a number of pomts
requiring clarification, Formal recreat:on is restrtcted to the school’s own use
for sports which for many years has not exceeded more than 8 hours use in a

year.  Official community usg has been limited but does. |nclude rentmg the -

field for an annual fair which visits the town for a week and occupies Toughly
half the site. The School has also approved the use by Cranbrook Business
Association, on an occasnona! basis, for one day events but not in the last tWt;:v
years. - (

So far as use of the site as a recreational area on a day to day basis is
concerned the School is not aware of any regular use by the community. The
exercising of dogs has always been challenged on all the School playing
fields without exception because of the health risks. The use by local
residents, with back garden gates, of the field as a short cut to the town has
been tolerated albeit reminding them that they have no rights of access.

The School policy has been to lock all gates during the holidays between '

terms and “Private Property, Cranbrook School. No unauthorised entry”
signs have been on both gates for many years. “No entry for dogs” signs are
also displayed on each gate. Perimeter fencing and hedges are routinely
repaired to restrict unauthorised access. Letters were sent to all property
owners with garden gates giving access to the field in 1988 and again in
August 1999 reminding them that they did not have any right of access.

Use of the site informally by local people where it has taken place is tolerated
but not a right.

Jaegers Field

Jaegers Field was transferred to the ownership of the Governing Body,
Cranrbook Schoo! from Kent County Council on 16 March 1993 as a resuit of
the power vested in the Secretary of State for Education and Science in the
Education Reform Act 1988, The land is subject to some covenants,
restrictions and stipulations dating from a Conveyance in 1938 when Mr
Jaeger purchased the field. '

Page 55

e purchase of .

in 1'947 the then Trustees conveyed to Cranbrook' RDC a strlp.""”

X




No temporary burldrngs huts sheds caravans houses on wheets or other
" sheds for use as a dwelling were_to be erected except as tncldental to the

-~ No building other than pnvate dwelllng hOUSGSHOI messuages:were to be
erected on the land IR LI A SRS : .

No trade manufacture professmn or busmess was to be carrred out on the
land, nc building was to be erected on the land and used as anythmg other
than as a private dwetllng or flat.”. There were some exclusions for the
* carying on the pract:ce or professaon of doctor, physician, surgeon or dentist:
The houses were not to be used for insane persons or inebriants or for any- -
noisy, noxious or offensive purposes! No nuisances were to be caused. No
bricks, tiles, clay or lime was to be burnt; no excavations were to be carried
out other than for buildings and drains and no quarrying was to be carned
out. No booths, shows, swings, roundabouts or hoardings or advert;srng
stations were to be put on the premises, other than for sale or to let boards!
The land was not to be used for the storage of rubbish or building materials.

[

The School policy for Jaegers Field has been to lock the entrance gate
during the holidays between terms and a 'Private Property, Cranbrook
School. No unauthorised entry” sign has been on the gate for many years.
Perimeter fencing and hedges are routinely repaired to restrict unauthorised
access. A natural fallen tree barrier has been created in the North Eastern
corner of the property where unknown persons had regularly cut and
removed a section of fencing.

Letters have been sent in August 1999 to all property owners with garden
gates giving access to the field reminding them that they did not have a right
of access. -

The School is not aware of any regular use by the community of the field as a
recreational area.

The playing field is occasionally used by Cranbrook Rugby Club when their
pitches are unfit for use. The School would normally be able to supply an
alternative pitch if Jaegers was no longer available. The field was made
available for car parking when the “Tour de France’ route passed through the
outskirts of Cranbrook.

School use of the playing field for games has declined to the extent that it has
not been used over the last five years or so due to its proximity to the road,

Page 56




dtstance from the School and changing facmnes and the ava:labllsty of the
other School rugby pltches more convenlently [ocated :

School Development - o
) ,Reference has been made in my earher submtssmn on Cranbrook School S
: cont:numg commitment to investment in its sports facilities. | conf irm that in
- the medtum to long term the $chool seeks to: ‘

. Leve{ and properly dram existing piaylng fields.
Provide additional changing facilities and pavilions
Provide a second astro turf hockey/tennls pltch preferably w1th ﬂoodi[ghtlng

Ptowde an all weather athletic track. - l

Cap;tal fund!ng is unhkely to be provrded by the Government and hence the
Trustees must examine the value of the Trusts assets in implementing the
improvement plans. (
I trust that the above is of assistance.

If you should wish to discuss any matters | would be happy to arrange to
meet with-you together with my client.

Yours sincerely \
L/V/L
Alan Bishop Consultancy

cc:. MrAD Jolley
Bursar and Clerk to the Governors

Page 57




APPENDIX G: Copies of letter sent to
adjoining residents in 1999 and 2005

CRANBROOX SC}¥

Cranbrook, Kent. TN17 3JD : .
Tefephone:  School 01580- 712163 Bursar 01580 -713334  Fax 01580 - 715365

The Occupant Ref. 3200

30 July 1999

Dear Occupant,

['am writing to you as the occupant of a house that backs onto Rammell Field. At
some time in the past, a gate has been constructed in your fence bordering the field
and it is appropriate that | draw to your attention the fact that you have no rights of
access to or passage across Rammell Field which is a private sports field owned by
the Trustees of Cranbrook School Trust. The exercising of dogs and the consequent
fouling of a sports field is also totally unacceptable.

The field is private property and | would ask for your co-operation in respecting it as
such. The School salicitors have been asked to advise on any further action that
should be taken to properly secure the field.

Yours sincerely,

\

************ e ‘C«Qg_.-_\\

A D JOLLEY
Clerk to the Trustees

E-mail: registrar@cranbrook.kent.sch.uk
WWW Address: hitp://www.cranbrook.kent.sch.uk.

Page 58




CRANBROOK SCHOOL

Cranbrook, Kent, TN17 31D

Bursar’s Dept: 01580 711811
Fax: 01580 711828
Emaik: facilities@cranbrook.kent.sch,uk

The Occupant

1 Dorothy Avenue
Cranbrook

Kent

TN17 3AP

17 January 2005

Dear Occupant,
I am writing to you as the occupant of a house that backs on to Rammell Field.

The Governors and [ recently reviewed the School’s land and noted that you
have an access gate from the back of your property on to the Fieid.

Rammell Field is a private sports field and you have no rights of access to, or
passage across it and | would therefore ask for your cooperation in respecting it
as such.

Please can you acknowledge receipt of this letter and let me know by which date
you intend to reinstate a formal boundary.

Yours sincerely

Karen Radford
Bursar

Page 59




000000 0008LG

000000 c.oohhm

000000000

000000 0002LE L

F g

& 2. 7
“@\ssnoyuuey \
wiesydy | B
Wriop >
A

.,
= SMOIBMS %,
.\~ smn "y

POOM
uoleuoio)
o

ulAEld

sijjemuiog

()

Ry

35 ¥ L e

£7BNNIG .
g v

) A

uaalg) AsIS|Ip

4
4
£

%
)

000000 00062S

000000 0008LS

000000 00042G

000000 0009€ b

000000 0002LE L




Agenda ltem 5

Application to register land at Bishops Green
at Great Chart as a new Village Green

A report by the Head of Regulatory Services to Kent County Council’s Regulation
Committee Member Panel on Tuesday 5" March 2013.

Recommendation: | recommend that the County Council refers the application
to the Planning Inspectorate for determination.

Local Members: Mr. J. Wedgbury Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land Bishops Green in
the parish of Great Chart with Singleton as a new Village Green from local resident
Ms. S. Williams (“the Applicant”). The application, received on 12" January 2012,
was allocated the application number VGA642. A plan of the site is shown at
Appendix A to this report.

2. Members should be aware from the outset that the purpose of this report is not to
determine this application, but rather to consider whether the County Council is in a
position to determine this application, for the reasons which are set out in more
detail below.

Procedure

3. The application has been made under section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 and
the Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008.

4. Section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 enables any person to apply to a Commons
Registration Authority to register land as a Village Green where it can be shown
that:

‘a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful sports
and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years;

5. In addition to the above, the application must meet one of the following tests:
* Use of the land has continued ‘as of right’ until at least the date of
application (section 15(2) of the Act); or
» Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended no more than two years prior to the
date of application, e.g. by way of the erection of fencing or a notice (section
15(3) of the Act);

6. As a standard procedure set out in the regulations, the Applicant must notify the
landowner of the application and the County Council must notify every local
authority. The County Council must also publicise the application in a newspaper
circulating in the local area and place a copy of the notice on the County Council’s
website. In addition, as a matter of best practice rather than legal requirement, the
County Council also places copies of the notice on site to provide local people with

Page 61



the opportunity to comment on the application. The publicity must state a period of
at least six weeks during which objections and representations can be made.

The application site

7.

The area of land subject to this application (“the application site”) consists of a
piece of open land of approximately 1.4 acres (0.6 hectares) situated adjacent to a
residential cul-de-sac known as Bishops Green in the Singleton area of the parish
of Great Chart with Singleton. The application site is shown in more detail on the
plan at Appendix A.

The application site has, since August 2011, been securely fenced with no public
access. Prior to that time, access to the site was via a path leading between Knoll
Lane and Longacre Road.

The application site falls within the ownership of Kent County Council. In August
2011, the County Council submitted a planning application (reference
11/01045/AS) to Ashford Borough Council, as the local Planning Authority, for
outline permission for the erection of up to 14 dwellings on the application site. The
planning application remains outstanding with the Borough Council and no final
decision has been taken in respect of it.

The case

10.The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has

11

become a Town or Village Green by virtue of the actual use of the land by the local
inhabitants for a range of recreational activities ‘as of right’ for more than 20 years.

.Included with the application were eight user evidence questionnaires from local

residents detailing their use of the application site over a period in excess of twenty
years. The evidence questionnaires refer to use of the application site for a number
of recreational activities, including dog walking, blackberrying, photography and
nature observation.

Consultations

12.Consultations have been carried out as required. The following responses have

been received.

13.The Great Chart with Singleton Parish Council wrote to confirm its support for the

application.

14. Additionally, 15 local residents also wrote in response to the consultation. Three

residents wrote solely to object to the proposed development of the application, but
the remainder wrote to add their evidence of use to that already submitted in
support of the application and to confirm that they had engaged in and observed
regular usage of the application site for recreational activities until access to it had
been prevented by the erection of fencing.

Page 62



Landowner

15.As stated above, the application site is owned by Kent County Council (“the
landowner”) and is registered with the Land Registry under title numbers K35382
and K343551.

16.Objection has been made to the application by the County Council’s Property
Group on the following grounds:

That a notice was erected on the application site in August 2009 stating “Public
Notice Kent County Council Property Land off Long Acre Road Ashford The
public may access this site for recreational purposes only they do so at their
own risk. Permission may be revoked at any time”. The landowner’s case is that
the effect of this notice was to cause ‘as of right’ use of the application site to
cease. As the application was not made until January 2012, it falls outside of
the two year period of grace provided for by the legislation.

That the applicant has not sufficiently defined the locality or neighbourhood
within a locality. The application form refers to ‘Singleton, Ashford, Kent’ but
Singleton would not qualify either as a locality (because it is not a legally
recognised administrative unit) or as a neighbourhood (because it lacks the
requisite degree of cohesiveness).

That the nature of the application site, prior to its clearance in 2010, was such
that it would not have been used significantly for lawful sports and pastimes.
The vegetation on the application site would have been such that any walking
would have been confined to defined routes, whilst other activities (e.g.
balckberrying or kite flying) would have been seasonal and infrequent in nature.
That the evidence submitted in support of the application is weak and suggests
only limited and sporadic recreational use of the application site, which would
be insufficient to appear to a reasonable landowner as being the assertion of a
public right. There is no evidence to suggest that the application site was in
general or regular use by the local community as a whole.

Applicant’s response to the objection from KCC’s Property Group

17.As required by Regulation 26 of the 2008 Regulations, copies of all of the
representations received were sent to the applicant for comment.

18.The applicant rejected the landowner’s suggestion that the evidence in support of
the application was lacking and, overall, insufficient to register the land as a Village
Green. She states that the local community enjoyed use of the application site for
many years until the fencing was erected and access denied. A number of
residents have submitted evidence forms documenting their use over the relevant
period; it was considered that this was sufficient, but if more evidence is required
this can be provided.

19.The applicant also challenged the assertion made by the landowner that Singleton
could not be a qualifying neighbourhood, and pointed to a number of features,
(including two schools, a youth club, an amateur dramatics society, a village hall
and the Singleton Environment Centre) that made up the community of Singleton.
She therefore was of the view that the community of Singleton is very much a
qualifying neighbourhood for the purpose of Village Green registration.

Page 63



Legal tests and discussion

20.The responsibility for determining applications under section 15 of the Commons
Act 2006 normally rests with the County Council in its capacity as the Commons
Registration Authority. However, more recently, it has been recognised that there
may be circumstances in which it is not appropriate for the County Council to
determine an application. Under those circumstances, the application must be
referred to the Planning Inspectorate who will take on the responsibility for
considering the application (including by the holding of a Public Inquiry where
necessary) and issuing a decision.

21.

Commons Registration (England)
application must be referred to the Planning Inspectorate in cases where:
‘the registration authority has an interest in the outcome of the application
or proposal such that there is unlikely to be confidence in the authority’s

The circumstances referred to above are set out in Regulation 27(3)(a) of the
Regulations 2008 which states that an

ability impartially to determine it’

22.DEFRA’s guidance’ in this respect states that:

23.1t is not the first time that such an issue has arisen in this county. Members will
recall a similar case involving land known as The Long Field at Cranbrook
which was considered at a meeting of the Regulation Committee Member
Panel on Tuesday 22m February 2011. In that case, the application site was
owned by the County Council and had been the subject of a planning
application for the construction of a new care home. At the time of the meeting,
the planning application had been withdrawn pending the outcome of the
Village Green application. Members agreed, on the basis of the County
Council’s significant interest in the outcome of that case, that the Village Green
application ought to be referred to the Planning Inspectorate for determination.

‘an authority should not refer a case simply because it has an interest in
the outcome, but only where that interest would seriously call into
question the authority’s ability to determine the matter impartially... an
authority [should not] refer a case simply because it (whether an officer,
Member, committee or executive) has discharged a function or
expressed views on a related matter in a different context. So, for
example, the test would be unlikely to be satisfied in relation to an
application to register land as a new town or village green if the
authority had granted planning permission for development of the land
or expressed support for the development.

But, in [this] example, if the authority itself owned the land, there might
not be confidence in the authority’s ability to determine the application
having regard to the more subjective nature of the criteria for
registration in section 15. However, an authority will need to have
regard to all the circumstances: if, for example, its practice is to appoint
an independent Inspector to enquire into the application, and to act on
the recommendations of the Inspector’s report, it may nevertheless be
possible for the registration authority to determine the application itself’

' ‘Guidance to commons registration authorities and PINS for the pioneer implementation’ (version 1.41,

September 2010), paragraphs 7.19.4 and 7.19.5 at pages 81 and 82

Page 64



24 In respect of this case, the views of both parties have been sought on the issue
of whether the County Council should determine this particular application.

25.The landowner’'s response (see letter at Appendix B) was that it is not
sufficient simply for the County Council merely to have an interest in the
outcome of the application and there is a high threshold to be met before the
application should be referred to the Planning Inspectorate. The landowner
refers to DEFRA’s guidance (quoted above) which suggests that an authority
may still be able to determine an application if its normal practice would be to
refer the matter to a Public Inquiry for consideration.

26.Furthermore, the landowner’s position is that the application is bound to fail (for
reasons set out in the objection above) and as such the County Council can
legitimately take a decision on the application without any accusation of acting
unfairly or in a biased manner. The landowner adds that the decision by the
Panel in relation to the Long Field at Cranbrook was wrong, and there is
nothing binding on the panel to act consistently with its previous decision.

27.However, the applicant’s response (see letter at Appendix C) was that there
would be an obvious conflict of interest if the application were to be determined
by the County Council, which has a direct benefit in refusing the application.
The tone of the objection is, in the applicant’s view, dismissive and one-sided
and as such only an independent Inspector appointed by the Planning
Inspectorate can provide an impartial and objective decision.

28.The applicant also refers to information which she feels has been deliberately
withheld despite requests for its provision and believes that it is not clear
whether all of the relevant information has been provided. She and the local
residents state that they do not have any confidence that clear and unbiased
information can be supplied to an internal Member Panel, and that the
application cannot be considered objectively unless it is referred to the
Planning Inspectorate.

29.Clearly, the test regarding whether or not there is likely to be confidence in the
County Council’s ability impartially to determine the application is a subjective
one. As DEFRA point out, the nature of a Local Authority is such that it
undertakes a variety of roles and functions, some of which will unavoidably
involve conflicting interests; indeed, the County Council is quite used to dealing
with such issues. There is also a further safeguard in the decision-making
process in that the Commons Act 2006 imposes a quasi-judicial function on the
County Council and unless that function is discharged in an appropriate
manner (i.e. according to the strict legal tests set out in section 15 of the
Commons Act 2006), then the County Council leaves itself open to a very
costly and time-consuming Judicial Review process.

30.However, it is equally important that the matter is considered from the point of
view of the applicant and the local community who may not have such a
detailed understanding of the decision-making process. If the applicant is not
confident of the County Council’s ability to impartially determine the application,
then it is important to consider whether such doubts are reasonably founded. If,
as DEFRA say, it is simply a matter of the County Council exercising conflicting
functions (i.e. as the Planning Authority and Registration Authority), then it may

Page 65



not be reasonable for the applicant to doubt the County Council’s ability to
determine the matter impartially.

31.1f, however, the County Council has a significant interest in the outcome of the
Village Green application because, for example, it owns the land in question
and is actively seeking to develop the land for financial gain (as opposed to, for
example, providing a community facility such as a school), then it is likely to
cause to a reasonable person to doubt the County Council’s ability to
determine the matter impartially.

Conclusion

32.The options available to the County Council at this stage are as follows:
e To refer the matter to the Planning Inspectorate for determination (on the basis
of the conflict of interest); or
e To decide that the application should be determined by the County Council in
due course.

33.The Officer’s view is that, in light of the comments expressed above, it would be
appropriate under the circumstances for this application be referred to the Planning
Inspectorate for determination. Indeed, the circumstances of this application
appear to fall squarely within the new provisions introduced by DEFRA to deal with
applications where the Commons Registration Authority has a significant interest in
the outcome of the application.

34.1f, however, Members are not minded to agree with the Officer's recommendation,
then a further report will be put to a future meeting of the Regulation Committee
Member Panel with a view the determination of the application.

Recommendation

35.1 recommend that the County Council refers the application to the Planning
Inspectorate for determination.

Accountable Officer:

Mr. Mike Overbeke — Tel: 01622 221500 or Email: mike.overbeke@kent.gov.uk
Case Officer:

Ms. Melanie McNeir — Tel: 01622 221511 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request at the PROW and Access Service
based at Invicta House, County Hall, Maidstone. Please contact the case officer for
further details.

Background documents
APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site

APPENDIX B — Letter from KCC Governance and Law dated 18" January 2013
APPENDIX C — Email from the applicant dated 8" February 2013

Page 66




&

APPENDIX A:
r .
w QS'{
& . . . .
: «| Plan showing application site
o 3
"%,
he
Singleton
Centre s
e
- . 9
o
,. 5
&0 Ss Ly
&8 £
S O o
& H
) H
@ F& =
Garpark ¢ B
SN Y
Draij 6 2
Sin oy o 5]
Z,‘,Io, & L MANORFIEL]
3 n
s
Froloung
*7on,, Wy o
o, " 3
Se Singlet 5% b,
D“o% Shog,, Manor
& S NGLETON
o
Py ]
o, Pou,
% " Ko
W
%
Vilge
=0 Great Chart <
©
Primary School KON %,
i %
%40 @.‘e‘
© o
&
5
B i ®
& 2
&
o o
o @ o
n n
- h
- » -
Windsor Court -
’ g
o s g
§ £
g F »
g E
IS
£
L3 &
S
»
< & ‘@x«"
=&
Te39 S
- &
H : .
Sons 2 = &
7 $
s 5
. N
3 S HARVES
g é W,
g & 4y
&
2 =
& 1
£s
S * g,
M %
¥ Wog o
o
>y
%,
8 4 K3
2 %
. 7S - o
# H =¥ 5 2 c
. g 2
®
@ &
F
s HARVEST way
¢ 2
H ES -
H 6t a
g3 2
c B ES
g S
2 s
%
\\°°
HEDGEROWs

ehalf of the
vn Copyright and may lead to

This map is based upon Ogdwatice Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on t
Controller of Her Majesty's Office (c) Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crow

“prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence number 100019238 [2012]

599000

S

Scale 1:2500

Land subject to Village Green application

at Bishops Green at Great Chart

Council

o




APPENDIX B: Letter #
Governance a

rom KCC

nd Law th
January 2013 dated 18

Governance & Law

Ms M McNeir Sessions House

Public Rights of Way County Hall

iH2 Maidstone

Invicta House L Kent ME14 1XQ
Maidstone DX: 123693 Maidstone 6

WWW, kent.a%ov.ukllegai
Direct Dial/Ext: 01622 6941

Fax Number: 01622 694402
E-mail address: liezl.emsley@kent.gov.uk
Ask for, Liezl Emsley
Your Ref:
Cur Ref: LS/21/26620/359
Date: 18 January 2013
Dear Melanie

Section 15(3) of the Commons Act 2006
Land behind Great Chart Primary School (ref VGA 642)
Application by Sharon Williams of 31 Bishops Green, Ashford, Kent TN23 5BQ

1. Thank you for your letter dated 18 December 2012 which was received in the Governance
and Law Department on 27 December 2012. As your request was under Regulation 28(4)
of the Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008 these representations must, in
determining the application, be taken into account by the determining authority under
Regulation 28(1).

2. In this case you are of course right to note that KCC is both landowner and applicant for
planning permission. However, it is not enough to require a reference to the Planning
tnspectorate that KCC has an interest in the application. Under Regulation 27(3)(a) it must
be an interest which is “such that there is unlikely to be confidence in the authority’s ability

L impartially to determine” the application. This is a high threshold. It means that people

L generally would have to have such little faith in the ability of KCC as registration authority to

' behave properly that they thought it was likely that the application would be determined
partially, that is {according to the Shorter OED) unfairly, unjustly and in a biased manner.

3. 1 do not believe that you can seriously consider that the general public would think that it
was more likely than not that KCC as registration authority would determine the application
unfairly, unjustly and in a biased manner. That is, frankly, unthinkable.

4. That it is a high threshold is confirmed in the DEFRA guidance. Paragraph 7.19.4 of the
guidance states that a reference to the Planning Inspectorate is necessary “only where that
interest would seriously call into question the authority’s ability to determine the matter
impartially”.  Paragraph 7.19.5 states that a registration authority would “need to have

Geoff Wq_ EQB ,a[l)fi ghl_% 'cgcc):l%gtno?tances . It also states that even where the registration authority is

Director of Governance & Law

# ™\ INVESTORS
’1&,, & IN PEOPLE

A

Excellence
Awards 2011
TWINNER

590 - 154217  AWARDS 2009

vy p
TRAVELERS ]
O WIN N RS,

koo PO SnTan e
24979




also the landowner “if, for example, its practice is to appoint an independent inspector to
inquire into the application, and to act on the recommendations of the inspector’s report, it
may nevertheless be possible for the registration authority to determine the application
itself”. This is of course the normal practice of KCC as registration authority.

5. It is clear therefore that, under the DEFRA guidance, Government considers that KCC
would still be able to determine the application, if it dealt with the application in the way that
KCC normally deals with new green applications, that is by appointing a barrister to enquire
into the application and acting on the recommendations in the barrister’s report.

6. As the DEFRA guidance states, KCC as registration authority must have regard to all the
circumstances. On the one hand, in her email dated 17 December 2012, the Applicant has
pointed to nothing except her desire that the application should be referred to the
Inspectorate. No reasons are given as to why this would be justified in terms of the test in
Regulation 27(3)(a). There is no case advanced by the Applicant to show that the test in
the Regulations is met,

7. On the other hand, as part of the circumstances, it is relevant to have regard to the issues
in dispute which would need to be considered by KCC as registration authority in
determining the application and the strength of the Applicant's case for registration. Now
we have the Applicant’s response to the objection of KCC as landowner, it is clear what
issues are in dispute.

8. KCC's objection dated 11 October 2012 explained that the application could not succeed
for any or all of the following reasons:

(1) The application under s15(3) was not made within the two year period of grace from
when any use as of right would have ended in August 2009 when the permissive
notice was erected.

{2) No qualifying neighbourhood and/or locality are identified in the application.

(3) The evidence of use for qualifying lawful sports and pastimes, even if taken at face
value, would have been no where near enough to show the necessary quality and
quantity of use and also wholly inadequate to discharge the burden of proof.

9. Only one of the above reasons wouid need to be upheld for the application to be rejected
summarily. The application has absolutely no prospect of success. The erection of the
notice in particular is a single “knock out blow”.

10. Further, an application under s15(2) has not been made but could not have been made in
any event as use as of right was not continuing at the date of the application due to the
permissive notice, the erection of the fence in August 2011, and/for the state of the land.
The land was not used at all for lawful sports and pastimes after the erection of the fence.

11. In her letter dated 10 December 2012, the Applicant does not even take issue with the
above points. Whilst she makes various complaints about the situation, she provides no
answers to counter the landowner's objection whatsoever. There is nothing from the
Applicant fo contradict the objection. The objection is bound to prevail.

Page 2

350/26690 - 154217
Page 69




12. The Applicant says that the land has been “used for recreational purposes for several
years”. It is necessary, however, to show that the land has been used for recreational
purposes for at least 20 years (since 1989 in this case) not just “several years”. She
confirms that those who provided evidence are “ocbviously... opposed to the development”.
She confirms that the permissive notice was erected in August 2009 and does not take any
issue with the legal effect of the notice. The Applicant accepts that the application was not
made within the two year period of grace, but argues instead that additional time beyond
the two year period of grace shouid be given. That, of course, is not accepted. Section
15(3) provides a two year period of grace and nothing more is applicable. If an application
is not made within the two year period of grace after qualifying use as of right ceases, then
the ability to register the land is lost (see eg Gasden 2™ edition at 14-05 and 14-06). The
notice was erected in August 2009 and the application was stamped January 2012, five
months out of time. Even on the Applicant’s (erroneous) argument, the application was two
months out of time.

13.In her letter dated 10 December 2012 the Applicant effectively confirms the landowner's
submissions about the state of the application site, including that it was largely wooded
(see also the attached aerial photographs). She says nothing in her letter to show that
there is a qualifying locality and provides no material to respond to the landowners
submissions on neighbourhood, or even to demonstrate that “Singleton” would qualify as a
neighbourhood for the purposes of s15(3) (and stili provides no plan of the alleged
neighbourhood). And she says nothing at all in her letter in response to the objection on
lawful sports and pastimes and appearance to a reasonable landowner.

14. Overall, once the complaints and the irrelevant points are left out, the Applicant’s letter
dated 10 December 2012 strongly supports the landowner’s objection and demonstrates
that the Applicant has no answer to the objection — and no case for registration.

15. Moreover, in any event, the application in this case is bound to fail, for the reasons given in
KCC’s objection dated 11 October 2012.

16. In short, the Applicant's case for registration is so hopeless that it is obvious what the
outcome of the application should be. As the answer is so obvious — the application must
be rejected — in KCC rejecting the application there would be no room for any one to think
that KCC as registration authority was acting unfairly, unjustly and in a biased manner. As
the case is so clear-cut, there is only one answer that could rationally be given to the
application. No serious suggestion of partiality could arise in this case, let alone a
likelihood of such partiality in the minds of the general public. There is therefore no reason
to consider that the test in Regulation 27(3){a) would be met in this particular case,
regardless of KCC’s position as landowner and applicant for planning permission.

17. You refer to the registration authority’s decision on the Long Field in Cranbrook. KCC
wrongly decided to refer that application to the Inspectorate. Just because the wrong
decision was taken in that case does not mean that the wrong decision should be taken in
this case as well.

18. In your letter you say that you consider that it would be appropriate for the current
application to be referred to the Inspectorate because KCC must act consistently. The
need for consistency does not feature as part of the test in Regulation 27(3)(a). It is not a
consideration which is relevant to this decision under the Regulations. There is no

Page 3

359/26690 - 154217
Page 70




requirement in the Regulations for decisions to be consistent. Rather, each decision
should be looked at on its own merits. That is a fundamental principle of decision-making.
in particular, where earlier decisions were erroneous they should not be followed. The right
decision must be taken in this case regardless of what the decision was in the Long Field
case.

19. Returning to the merits of the case, in addition to the erection of the permissive notice in
August 2009 (probably 13 or 14 August), the promotion of the site for development from
2006 onwards, and the erection of the fencing in August 2011, the objection mentioned the
clearance of the site in 2010. The clearance of the site occurred in two stages:

(1) clearance of the site (except the central wooded area) by Clearway over 15 working
days from 11 December 2009 to 21 January 2010 (see attached invoice and
photograph); and

(2) the tree felling and stump grinding by KCC Landscape Services in August 2010 in
the central wooded area.

20. The work done in December 2009 to January 2010 by Clearway in clearing the scrub from
the un-wooded part of the application site was very substantial, taking 15 working days for
gangs using chainsaws, hedge cutters and strimmers. Not only does this demonstrate how
unusable the land was for lawful sports and pastimes, but it would also constitute an
interruption in the use of the land. Photographs show that — as one would expect for health
and safety reasons — the site was fenced off for the period when the clearance works were
underway (and would not have been usable then anyway). A similar situation would have
prevailed for the tree felling works in the central wooded area in August 2010.

21. So, in addition to the points made in the objection dated 11 October 2010, it is apparent
that there was an interruption in any use of the land in December 2009 to January 2010
and/or August 2010. The need for continuous use was highlighted by the Supreme Court in
R (Lewis) v Redcar and Cleveland BC [2010] 2 AC 70 at eg [33], [47] and [72]. An
interruption will ocour where activities or works are undertaken which prevent use of the
affected land during any material part of the relevant period (see Betterment Properties v
Dorset CC & Taylor [2010] EWHC 3045 (Ch) at [141]-[151], especially [150], and also
Taylor v Betterment Properties & Dorset CC [2012] EWCA Civ 250 (CA) at [21], [65]-[66]
and [70]-[71]). This will prevent registration of the land.

22. Overall, it is clear that the application is hopeless and is bound to fail. This is relevant to
the registration authority’s decision under Regulation 27(3)(a). No serious suggestion of
partiality could arise in this case, let alone a likelihood of such partiality in the minds of the
general public, because the case is so clear-cut that there is only one answer that could
rationally be given to the application.

23. The DEFRA guidance at paragraph 7.11.31 also makes it clear that the registration
authority must give consideration to not only whether there is an interest in the outcome but
also whether that interest is “such that there is unlikely to be confidence in the authority’s
ability impartially to determine” the application. | am sure that in your report to the
Regulation Committee Member Panel you will point out all the courses available to

Page 4

359/26690 - 154217
Page 71




24. Members and ensure that the submissions of KCC as landowner are fully before the Panel.
i would be grateful if you could ensure that | am given notice of the Panel meeting so that
KCC as landowner can be represented at the Panel’s meeting.

Yours sincerely

L
Solicitor

Page 5

350/26690 - 154217
Page 72




APPENDIX C: Email from the
applicant dated 8™ February 2013

McNeir, Melanie - CC CS

From: Sharon Williams _

Sent: 08 February 2013 01:55
To: McNeir, Melanie - CC CS
Cc: Barbara Martin, Hodgkinson, Amanda Georgina - Ashford District Councillor; Angus

Willson; David Dickinson

Subject: Application fo register land at rear of Bishops Green at Singleton, Great Chartas a
Viliage Green Ref PROW/ /IMM/NVGAG42

Follow Up Flag: Flag for follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Dear Melanie,

Having considered your letter and enclosures sent around21st January 2013 but dated 13th
December 2012 togehter with neighbours, our local Councillor and Members of the Parish Council |
- wish to confirm my request for this application to be considered by the Planning Inspectoratefor
decision. The reasons for this request are as follows:

1. We believe that there would be an obvious conflict of interest in relation to this case if it were to
be decided by KCC members. This is because KCC is the landowner in this case and therefore stands
to have a direct benefit in refusing the application. We belive that it may be very difficult for this
decision to be made impartially since there is every possibility that the decision may be influenced
by the potential financial benefits for KCC arising from the sale / development of this land.

2. It is also my belief that there is evidence that KCC officers have avoided the provision of
mformation thereby obstructing the process. KCC officers did not notify residents of the proposals
for this land even when asked. In an FOI request response to me I was advised that there was no
information held about the decision to clear the land or of the costs or other aspects of KCC activities
regarding this land. T was also told that there were no proposals for the future of this land.
Suprisingly however when objections to my application were presented suddenly KCC were able to
present information including invoices detailing the work to clear the land and even photographs and
evidence that KCC had clerly been planning an alternative use for this site. I believe that this

© demonstrates that officers will not present the information impartially and objectively since they W111
try to prove the case for the benefit of KCC,

This raises serious concerns that when a member of the public requests information under a clear
legal process it cannot be found , yet clearly it exists and is brought forward when it is to KCC's
advantage to do s0. It seems that Officers pick and choose information to be made available. This
leaves me concerned that if this matter is not considered by the inspector our voice will not be heard
and we will not be given due consideration. The tone of the KCC submissions so far are dismissive
and one sided and therefore we believe that an Inspector can provide an impartial and objective
decision.

3. When the works to fell the trees commenced a neighbour enquired about why this work was
proceding and could not be given any clear information about why so it appears that again we were
mislead at that time. I believe that the lack of provision of information from KCC officers was an
attempt to jepordise any claim, since officers were not open about what was happening and the issue
of timescales and only been provided after the submission of the application Clir ] Wedgebury
(County Councillor) was contacted on the day the tree felling started and a request to register a
village green application was made within days. My absolute devastation at the loss of the trees and
at the damage to the local wildlife was fully witnessed by the Cllr.

Page 73
20/02/2013




Page 2 of 3

4. I would-stongly disagree that I have not taken issue with the points set out in Liezl Emsleys letter
of 18/01/13. I may not have the benefit of the use of an expensive Barrister's advice, nor legal
training or the type of knowledge and experience tha the KCC Property Services Officers have to
enable me to respond to these points quite as forcefully or eloquently as Liezl Emsley, but 1 did
clearly respond to the points raised and have challenged them.

5. The local residents including myself had no option but to accept that the notice and fence were put
up and could have done anything about this so I find it bizzare to say that it created a break in the use
of the land. In actual fact people did continue to use the land as it is not secure and there are other
access points onto the land where there is no fence and no signs or notices.

6. When the fence did go up a neighbour contacted KCC and was advised that it was to protect the
land from encampments. Strangely this had never been considered before over a period of 20 years
and I would therefore suggest that officers were quite well aware of the timescales connected to the
VG process and information was witheld about this so as to attempt to thwart any application by
local people. In considering the barrister's advice to KCC it does indicate that KCC officers carefully
has calculated the errection of the sign suddenly after 20 years , the clearance of the land out of the
blue, and the errection of the fence in the full knowledge of timescales around applying for a VG
application and timed these actions to specifically frustrate any application by residents. The
information about timescales was not made clear or expalined by KCC even when being asked for
information.

7. The letter mentions that we were aware of the promotion of the use of this land for development
from 2006. We were NOT aware of this. | presume this relates to the urban sites development plan.
This was not adequately consulted upon with local residents affected. The consultation amounted to
being on the Council web site. What normal resident who has no other indication or reason to would
check a website daily just in case there may be something on it which may affect them? How did
residents know that this was being consulted upon if they were not told? The simple answer is that
we were not told and not directed to look at the website and there is also evidence that this was not
adequately brought to the attention of our local Councillor or our Parish Council. I find it
unreasonable then for this to be cited in the objections as it is completed irrelevant.

8. The letter datred 18th January 2013 asserts that there were no lawful sports and pastimes on the
land. This is simply not true. The land was used as previously advised for various reasons. In
addition the Open Spaces society has advised that there is no reason why woodland may not be
considered a village green. Neighbours and I have taken great delight in observing wildlife on this
alnd and enjoyed the recreational effect of the open space and the trees were an important part of this
and was full of birds and bats. ‘

9. We are making this application as we belive that this land should continue to be used by the
community incorporting the school which is adjacent tot he land. Sureely there is more to the KCC
strategy for imrpoving the health and wellbeing of residents than selling of every part of land
possible and taking away all of our open spaces.

In summary my neighbours and I have enjoyed the use of this open space for many years and we feel
passionately that residents health and wellbeing should be a major factor considered by KCC to
balance with selling sites for a financial return. We feel that this land should continue to be able to be
used by the community.

My neighbours and I strongly feel that this cannot be considered objectively unless it is referred to
the planning inspector since we have no confidence that clear and unbiased information can be
supplied to an internal member panel. Any information placed before council members is liekly to be
biased to the wider interests of KCC,

Could I please ask you to provide me with an electronic copy of your letter and enclosures and if

Page 74
20/02/2013




Page 3 of 3

possible a copy of my original application to you with enclosed plan and proformas from other
residents. If you have this electronically this would be very much appreciated but if not a hard copy
would be welcome.

Regards
Sharon Williams

Page 75
20/02/2013




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



	Agenda
	3 Application to register land known as The Cricket Field at Marden as a new Village Green
	4 Item 04 Application to register land known as Rammell Field at Cranbrook as a new Village Green
	5 Application to register land at Bishops Field at Great Chart as a new Village Green

